Creating the leaves of a success story

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

\AAAAAAAAAAAAALAAAL

Annual Report 2023-2024



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga
Chairman &Mg. Director

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
» Mr.Deepak Tiwari, Independent Director

Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee, Independent Director

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. NirajTiwari

AUDITORS
M’s. P. D. Rungta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Kolkata

BANKER
State Bank of India

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
CIN : U67120WB2011PLC165872
383, Lake Gardens, 1* Floor, Kolkata — 700045
Telephone: 033-4072 4051; Fax: 033-4072 4050
E-mail: messta@rediffimail.com
Website: www.mcsregistrars.com

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
' CIN : L01132WB1990PLC048991
REGISTERED OFFICE & ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3H Floor, Kolkata-700001
Phone: 2210 0553; Fax: 2210 0541
E-mail: enquiry@norbentea.com
Website: www.norbentea.com

PLANTATION & FACTORY:
P.O.Kuripara,
Dist.Jalpaiguri, Pin-735 132, West Bengal



NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34™Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
will be held on Friday, the 9% August, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing
(“VC”) /Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM?”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
year ended on 31% March, 2024 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thercon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted”

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386),who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director and in this
regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386), who retires by rotation at this meeting
and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as
a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

To appoint the Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from
time to time including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the consent of the members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint M/s. A O MITTAL
& ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants {FRNo0.014640C) with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) having a Peer review Certificate issued by the Peer Review
Board of ICAL, as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting to hold office for a period of five (5) years till the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2028-29, at a remuneration as mutually
agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms, papers or documents, as may
be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary or
incidental for ‘giving effect to this resolution and as may be considered desirable or
expedient by the Board in the best interest of the Company and its Members.”



SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.

Appointment of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree (holding DIN: 00421623), as an
Independent Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the
Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree (holding
DIN:00421623), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, and who is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act
signifying his intention to propose Mr. Bagree’s candidature for the office of Director, be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, for a 1™ term of five consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 31%
March, 2029,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its
Committee thercof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Appointment of Ms. Komal Bhotika (holding DIN: 08845578), as an Independent
Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the
Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Ms. Komal Bhotika (holding DIN:
08845578), who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as
provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and who is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act signifying his
intention to propose Ms. Bhotika’s candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
I¥term of five consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting till the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2029,



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its
Committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Prior Approval for Related Party Transactions with M/s Tongani Tea Co. Ltd.,
repetitive in nature and in the ordinary course of business of the Company for the
next 12 months period

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution: ~

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 (*Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulation 23 of the
Securitiecs and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) and the Company’s policy on
Related Party transaction(s) and Materiality of Related Party Transactions, and basis the
approval of the Audit Committee and recommendation of the Board of Directors of the
Company, approval of Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of
the Company to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with M/s. Tongani
Tea Company Ltd., a related party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, to avail loan, on such terms and conditions
as the Board of Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs.5 Crore
for the next 12 months period in one or more tranches, provided that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit in its absolute
discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
finalizing and executing necessary contract(s), arrangement(s), agreement(s) and such
other documents as may be required, to finalize any documents and writings related thereto
and to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with Registrar of Companies/MCA
Portal, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of
the Company, to delegate all or any of its powers conferred under this resolution to any
Director or Key Managerial Personnel or any Officer / executive of the Company and to
resolve all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise in this
regard and all action(s) taken by the Company in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects.”

Prior Approval for Related Party Transactions with M/s Mangalam Products Pvt.
Ltd., repetitive in nature and in the ordinary course of business of the Company for
the next 12 months period

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulation 23 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure



Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and the Company’s policy on
Related Party transaction(s) and Materiality of Related Party Transactions, and basis the
approval of the Audit Committee and recommendation of the Board of Directors of the
Company, approval of Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of
the Company to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with M/s. Mangalam
Products Pvt. Ltd, a related party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, to avail loan, on such terms and conditions
as the Board of Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs.1 Crore
for the next 12 months period in one or more tranches, provided that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit in its absolute
discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
finalizing and executing necessary contract(s), arrangement(s), agreement(s) and such
other documents as may be required, to finalize any documents and writings related thereto
and to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with Registrar of Companies/MCA
Portal, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of
the Company, to delegate all or any of its powers conferred under this resolution to any
Director or Key Managerial Personnel or any Officer / executive of the Company and to
resolve all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise in this
regard and all action(s) taken by the Company in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all

respects.”

By Otrder of the Board
Regd.Office : For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

15B, HemantaBasuSarani, 3 Floor
Kolkata — 700 001. Sd/-
Date :29™ May, 2024, MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)
DIN: 00123386

NOTES:

1. The relevant Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act’), setting out the material facts relating to the aforesaid Resolutions and the
reasons thereof is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its Circular Nos.20/2020, 10/2022 and
09/2023 dated May 5, 2020,28" December, 2022 and 25™ September, 2023, respectively,
and other circulars issued in this respect (“MCA Circulars”) allowed, inter-alia, conduct of
AGMs through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC/ OAVM”) facility
on or before j3ﬂ‘hSeptember 2024, in accordance with the requirements provided in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the MCA General Circular No.20/2020.Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) also vide its Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated
5"January 2023 (“SEBI Circular™) has provided certain relaxations from compliance with
certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™). In compliance with these Circulars, provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 34"AGM of the Company is being held through
VC/OAVM, which does not require physical presence of members at a common venue.



10.

. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of

Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,
3" August, 2024 to Friday, 9™ August, 2024(both days inclusive) for annual closing.

. Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for

appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the
Attendance Slip, Route Map and Proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

. The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM from its Registered Office i.e.

15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3¢ Floor, Kolkata-700001,Which shall be deemed to be venue
of the meeting.

. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are

requested to send a scanned copy of the board resolution (pdf/jpeg format) authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. The said Board
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered
email address to investorcare@norbentea.com.

. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through

an electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as presently in force and
the business set out in the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information
and instructions including details of user id and password relating to e-voting are provided
in the Notice under Note No.19.

. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their

address alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents (RTA), MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited. Members holding shares in electronic
mode are requested to send the intimation for change of address / bank mandate to their
respective Depository Participant.

. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint

holding in the same order of names are requested to write to the Company’s RTA,
enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a
single folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in
dematerialized form.

Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per
the regulation of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already
complied with, please ignore this).

Members may  please note that SEBI  vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25"January, 2022 has mandated
the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing
service requests, viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; renewal/ exchange of
securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate;
consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Further SEBI
vide its circular No. SEBVHO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/65 dated IE”“Ma}'._
2022 has simplified the procedure and standardized the format of documents for
transmission of securities. Accordingly, members are requested to make service requests
by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4 & ISR-5, as the case may be. The said
form can be downloaded from the website of the Company and RTA.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") vide its Circular dated 16™ March,
2023 has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (i.e. Postal Address with PIN Code,
email address, mobile number, bank account details) and nomination details by physical
holders of securities in prescribed forms. Relevant details and forms prescribed by SEBI in
this regard are available on the website of the Company at
https:fmw.nnrbcntea.camfﬁnancials.html : :

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as
possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository
Participant and holdings should be verified.

Details under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per Para 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard 2. issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director seeking
appointment and re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of

*

the notice, The Director has furnished the requisite declaration for his re-appointment.

Details under Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect of the Statutory Auditors seeking appointment
and re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of the notice.

Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 34™ Annual General Meeting of
the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent to all
the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)
for communication purposes.

In terms of SEBI Circular No.SEBVHO/CF D/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated Sthianuary 2023
and MCA Circulars owing to the difficulties involved in despatching of physical/hard
copies of full annual report to shareholders are being sent in electronic mode to members
those email address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant (s). The
members who have not updated their email address are requested to do so immediately
since the requirement of sending physical copies of annual report are dispensed with.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts
and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the
Act and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in
electronic mode.

Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in
respect of shares held by them pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. The prescribed Form
(Form SH 13) can be obtained from the website of the Company and RTA. If a member
desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/ she
may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be
downloaded from the website of the Company and RTA. Members holding shares in
electronic form may approach their respective DPs for completing the nomination
formalities.



18.

19.

Members desiring to avail this facility may send their Nomination Form (in duplicate) duly
filled in, to the Company or its Share Transfer Agents, MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
of 383, Lake Gardens, 1* Floor, Kolkata — 700045, by quoting their respective Folio
Numbers.

Members may'also note that the Notice of the 34"™ Annual General Meeting, the Annual
Report for 2023-24 will also be available on the Company’s website www.norbentea.com.
Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost.
For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s
investor email id: investorcare(@norbentea.com.

CDSL e-Voting System — For e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings.

As you are aware, the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the
guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No.20/2020,
10/2022 and 09/2023 dated May 5, 2020, 28" December, 2022 and 25™ September, 2023,
respectively. The Annual General Meeting will thus be held through video conferencing
(VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in
the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and MCA Circulars the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting. For
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized
e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well
as the e-voting system on the date of the Annual General Meeting will be provided by
CDSL.

The Members can join the Annual General Meeting in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes
before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the Annual General
Meeting through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first
come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2%
or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the Annual General Meeting without restriction on account of first come first served
basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this Annual General Meeting. However, in pursuance of
Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members
such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the
Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

—



(iv)

6.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars, the Notice calling the
Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.norbentéa.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The Annual General Meeting
Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility and e-voting system during the Annual General Meeting)
i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOININGVIRTUAL
MEETINGSARE AS UNDER:

Step1  : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDLe-Voting system in case of individual

shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step2  : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in

(®

(i)

(iii)

physicalmode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

The voting period begins on 6% August, 2024 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 8™ August, 2024 (5.00
p-m.). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 2™ August, 2024 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Sharcholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Secretarial Standard on General Meetings
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and Regulation 44
of Listing Regulations read with MCA Circulars, as amended, listed entities are required to
provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-
institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility
to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance
of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it
has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single
login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step1  : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual

shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI Circulars on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given
below: '



Type of | Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
Shareholders existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
holding page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi /
Jecurtiesyn Easiest arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
Demat mode . . .. .
with CDSL www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
Depository 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers ie.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin.  The  system  will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.
1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Individual Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
Shareholders https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
hOId".lg . the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
securities In . A . . .
demat mode under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will-
with NSDL open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
Depository authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to

e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.




2)

3)

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.isp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting

Individual You can also login uéing the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click

securities in
demat mode)

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on

login through company name or ¢-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
their to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Depository Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Participants

(DP)

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e.CDSL and NSDL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@ecdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no. 1800 22 55 33

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30

_Login type
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.
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)

1)
2)
3)

4

3)

6)

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.
Now enter your User ID

a. For C]iSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID.

¢. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

Next enter theIImage Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holdin_q
shares in Demat.

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as wel] as physical shareholders)

o Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Details

OR Date * If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
of  Birth enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(DOB) |
(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat hoiders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.
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(viii)

(ix)
(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, else
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL?” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote,

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification,

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians — For Remote
Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
“Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting(@edslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in
case of any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatoryto send the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz;investorcare@norbentea.com, if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same. '
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

10.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the Annual General
Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company
will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-
voting. *

Sharcholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / TPads for better
experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluetuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior
to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have querics may send their queries in advance 10 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the Annual General Meeting.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the Annual
General Meeting and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the sharcholders attending
the meeting.



PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no.
with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting
& joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending Annual General Meeting & e-Voting from
the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@ecdslindia.com or contact
attoll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22

55 33.
L

II.

1I1.

V.

VL

VIL

Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM and are
attending the meeting will not be entitled to cast their vote again.

Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the
Notice / Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e.2™ August, 2024, are
requested to send the written / email communication to the Company at
investorcare@norbentea.com by mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID to
obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting.

Shareholders can also update your mobile number and email id in the user profile
details of the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

- The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 2™ August, 2024, A
person who is not a member as on cut off date should treat this notice for information
purpose only.

Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries of Plot No.lID/31/1, Street No. 1111,
PS Qube, Unit No. 10154, 10" Floor, Kolkata- 700161has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote ¢-voting and voting process to be carried out at
the Annual General Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company within 2 working days
from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

The Chairman shall declare the result forthwith. The Results declared alongwith the
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.norbentea.com
and on the website of CDSL and communicated to the stock exchange(s),
immediately.
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Annexure to Notice ;

Details of Directors seeking appointment

and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General

Meetings]

Name of the Director | M, Manoj Kumar | Ashok Vardhan | Komal Bhotika |
Daga Bagree

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00123386 00421623 08845578

Date of Birth 06-01-1963 29-12-1966 18-05-1988

Nationality Indian Indian Indian

Date of Appointment on the Board 25" April, 1994 - -

Designation Chairman & Mg, Non-executive Non-executive
Director Independent Independent

Director Director
Eualiﬁcations Bachelor of Commerce Bachcelor of Commerce | Chartered Accountant
Expertise in specific functional area Accounts, Finance Accounts, Finance Accounts, Finance
Number of shares held in the Company 120501 2036 Nil

Fees & Commission)

List of the directorships held in other | Tongani Tea Company | Tongani Tea Company | Shri Vasuprada
listed companies Limited Limited Plantations  Limited
Shri Vasuprada | (Formerly : Joonktollee
‘ Plantations Limited | Tea &  Industries
{Formerly : Joonktollee | Limited)
Tea &  Industries
Limifed)
Number of Board Meetings attended | 7 NA NA
during the year 2023-24
Chairmanships / Memberships of Stakeholders  Relationship | Audit Commiftes Audit Committes
Committees of other listed companies* Committes Tongani Tea Company | Shri Vasuprada
] Ltd (Chairman) Plantations  Limited
Tonglam Tea Company Litd. (Chairman)
(Chairman)
chol elationshi
Commiltes
Tongani Tea Company
Ltd. (Member)
Audit Committes
Shri Vasuprada
Plantations
Limited(Member)
: Committee
Shri Vasuprada
Plantations
LimitediChairman)
Relationships between Directors inter-se | None None None
Remuneration defails (Including Sitting | Rs.6,60,000/- - -

* Committee positions only Audit Committee and Stak

Companies have been considered.

is

eholders’ Relationship Committee in Public



Details of Staturory Auditors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015,

The Members of the Company appointed M/s. P. D. Rungta & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No.001150C) in its meeting held on November 1, 2023, to fill the casual vacancy
caused by the resignation of M/s. L. K. Bohania & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 317136E) for the current Financial Year 2023-24 w.e.f, 25" September, 2023 to hold office
till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company based on recommendation of Audit Committee of the
Board of the Company has recommended the appointment of M/s. A O MITTAL &
ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants (FR No.014640C) in its meeting held on May 29, 2024,
subject to approval of members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM)
as the term of appointment of M/s. P. D, Rungta & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No.001150C), was coming to an end at the conclusion of 34" AGM.

Brief profile and the terms of appointment are detailed as under:
Brief Profile

M/s. A O Mittal & Associates is a professional practising CA firm in Jaipur registered with the
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAI), established in 2008 by CA Om Prakash Mittal
with aim of providing a wide range of Auditing, accounting & financial services to the clients.
Firm with its present name came into existence since 2008, Currently having full time working
partner strength of 7 FCA & 5 ACA along with 3 Full Associate Professional.

Terms of appointment and fee

To hold office of the s'mtutury auditors from conclusion of the 34™ AGM until the conclusion of
39" AGM on such remuneration as may be mutually determined between the said Auditors and
the Board of Directors of the Company.

The fee for the year 2024-25 for various services of M/s A O Mittal & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, which includes Statutory Audit, Limited Reviews and Certification work is being
discussed and once approved by Board, is expected to be up to Rs.75,000/- excluding out of
pocket expenses and taxes. The fees paid to M/s. P, D. Rungta & Co, Chartered Accountants, the
outgoing Auditors, for the year 2023-24 is detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

M/s. A O Mittal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have confirmed that their appointment, if
made, would be in accordance with the conditions as prescribed in Rule 4 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that they satisfy the criteria provided in Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors upon recommendation of Audit Committee have recommended the

appointment of M/s, A O Mittal & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company.
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Annexure to Notice

EXPLNATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (“Act”)

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.4&5

The Board of Directors of the Company (based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee) at its meeting held on May 29, 2024, recommended for the approval of
the Members, the appointment of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree (holding DIN:00421623)&M:s.
Komal Bhotika (holding DIN: 08845578) as an Independent Director of the Company, in terms of
section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, aged about 57 years is Bachelor of Commerce with Honours in
Accountancy. He is an eminent share broker in Kolkata and is also associated with various
Companies as Director.

He is a Director in M/s. Tongani Tea Company Ltd., M/s. Shri Vasuprada Plantations Limited and
M/s. Keshava Plantations Private Limited. He is a member of Tongani Tea Company Ltd. Mr.
Bagree holds 2036 Equity shares of the Company. He does not hold for any other person on a
beneficial basis. any shares in the Company.

The other details of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing
Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice. The Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree's vast
knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the
Resolution at Item No.4 of this Notice relating to the appointment of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree
as an Independent Director, not be liable to retire by rotation, for your approval.

Except Mr. Bagree being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set
out at Item No 4.

Ms. Komal Bhotika aged about 36 years, is a fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountant
of India (ICAI) and member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and has over 12
years of extensive and varied experience in the field of registrar & share transfer agent services,
finance, law & allied matters.

She is a Director in M/s. Shri Vasuprada Plantations Limited. She is not a member in any other
Company in India. Ms. Bhotika does not hold by herself or for any other person on a beneficial
basis, any shares in the Company.

She is not a Director or a Member in any other Company.

The other details of Ms. Komal Bhotika in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation and
Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Ms. Komal Bhotika’s vast knowledge and varied
experience will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item
No.5 of this Notice relating to the appointment of Ms. Komal Bhotika as an Independent Director,
not be liable to retire by rotation, for your approval. '
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Except Ms. Bhotika being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives is concemned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at [tem No.5,

The other details of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika in terms of Regulation
36(3) of the Listing Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice. Mr. Ashok
Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika are not related to any Director of the Company.

In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that
Mr. Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika fulfills the conditions specified in the Act
for their appointment as an Independent Director. After taking into consideration the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board is of the opinion that
Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika vast knowledge and varied experience will be
of great value to the:Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.4 & 5 of this
Notice relating to the appointment of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika, as an
“Independent Director”, not liable to retire by rotation for a period of five consecutive years
commencing from the conclusion of the Annual General Meetin g for the Financial Year ended 31%
March, 2024 till the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2029, for
your approval.

Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika have given a declaration to the Board that they
meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has also received:-

(i) the consent in writing to act as Director and

(i) intimation that he/she is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) a declaration to the effect that he/she is not debarred from holding the office of Director
pursuant to any Order issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal
Bhotika, as Independent Director setting out the terms & conditions would be available for
inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during
normal business hours on any working day.

Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree & Ms. Komal Bhotika respectively are concerned or interested in the
resolutions of the accompanying notice relating to their own appointment.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thercof is concerned or
interested in the Resolutions at itermn nos.4 to 5.
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.6&7

In terms of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, (*SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended, any transactions with a related party
shall be considered material, if the transaction (s) entered into/ to be entered into individually or
taken together with the previous transactions during a financial year exceeds Rs. 1.000 crore or
10% of annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements
of the Company, whichever is lower, shall require prior approval of shareholders by means of an
ordinary resolution. The said limits are applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary
course of business of the concerned company and at an arm’s length basis, The amended
Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulation has also enhanced the definition of related
party transaction which now includes a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between (i) a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of
the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand, as well as (ii) a listed entity or any of
its subsidiaries on one hand and any other person or entity on the other hand, the purpose and
effect of which is to benefit any related party of the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries,
regardless of whether a price is charged or not. Further contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into with the related party in the ordinary course of business of the
Company & on arms’ length basis for the next 12 months period are required to be placed before
the Members for their approval before such contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) are given
effect to.

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s) 6 and 7 are placed for the approval of the
Members of the Company.

Background, details and benefits of the transaction:

M/s Tongani Tea Company Ltd (TTCL) is engaged in the business of growing & manufacturing
of tea. Tongani Tea Estate situated in Mangaldoi Tea District of Assam belongs to M/s Tongani
Tea Company Ltd. TTCL is your Promoter Group Company. To meet the business requirements
and with an object to reduce the debt financing cost of the Company, your Company proposes to
enter into transaction(s) with M/s Tongani Tea Company Ltd., which is a Promoter Group
Company of your Company. Accordingly, transaction(s) with TTCL comes within the meaning of
Related Party transaction(s) in terms of provisions of the Act, applicable Rules framed thereunder
read with the Listing Regulations. The amount to be borrowed from TTCL will be unsecured and
payable on demand at an interest rate prevailing in the market. The total value of the proposed
transaction(s) could reach Rs. 5 Crore during the next 12 months period.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, of RPTs proposed to be entered into by your Company with TTCLfor the next 12 months
period including rationale, material terms and basis of pricing. The Audit Committee, after
discussion and deliberation, has granted approval for RPTs with TTCL for an aggregate value of
up to Rs. 5 crore to be entered during the next 12 months period. The Committee has noted that
the said transactions will be on an arms’ length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company.

Now, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into by your Company with TTCL for the next 12 months period.
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Details of the transactions with TTCL, being a related party of the Company, including the
information Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as
amended till date, and SEBI Master Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July
11,2023, are as follows:

SL

Description

Details

1

Details of Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit

Committee

Name of the related party and its
relationship with the listed entity or
its subsidiary, including nature of
its concern or interest (financial or
otherwise);

M/s Tongani Tea Company Ltd. is a Promoter
Group Company of M/s Norben Tea & Exports
Ltd.(“Company™)

Name of the Director or KMP who
is related

Manoj Kumar Daga, Managing Director of M/s.
Norben Tea & Exports Ltd.(“Company”)

Nature, material terms, monetary
value and particulars of the contract
or arrangement

Contract to borrow money not exceeding Rs. 3
crore in one or more tranches (up to a value of
Rs.1 Crore per transaction). Amount to be
borrowed shall be unsecured, payable on demand
and rate of interest shall not exceed 10% per
annum.

Tenure of the Transaction

Not fixed. The loan shall be repayable on
availability of liquidity.

Value of transaction

Up to Rs. 5 crore

Percentage of annual consolidated
turnover of M/s Norben Tea &
Exports Ltd considering FY2023-24
as the immediately preceding
financial year.

76.04%

Justification for the transaction

Please refer to ‘Background, details and benefits
of the transaction’ which forms part of the
statement to the resolution No.6

Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: Not Applicable

details of the source of funds in
connection with the proposed
transaction

it.

where any financial indebtedness is
incurred to make or give loans,
inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments

- nature of indebtedness;

- cost of funds; and

- tenure

1il,

applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate and
repayment  schedule,  whether
secured or unsecured; if secured, the
nature of security

Not Applicable
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iv. | the purpose for which the funds will
be utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such funds pursuant
to the RPT

4. | A statement that the valuation or Not Applicable
other external report, if any, relied
upon by the listed entity in relation
to the proposed transaction will be
made available through registered
e-mail address of the shareholder

5. | Any other information that may be | All important information forms part of the
relevant statement setting out material facts, pursuant to
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
forming part of this Notice.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the related
parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid
transactions or not), shall not vote to approve resolutions under Item No.6.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives,
other than as mentioned above is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution mentioned at Item No.6 of the Notice.

Basis the consideration and approval of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommend
the Ordinary Resolution forming part of Item No.6 of the accompanying Notice to the
shareholders for approval.

Background, details and benefits of the transaction:

M/s. Mangalam Products Pvt. Ltd. (MPPL) is engaged in the business of real estate is your
Promoter Group Company. To meet the business requirements and with an object to reduce the
debt financing cost of the Company, your Company proposes to enter into transaction(s) with M/s.
Mangalam Products Pvt. Ltd., which is a Promoter Group Company of your Company.
Accordingly, transaction(s) with MPPL comes within the meaning of Related Party transaction(s)
in terms of provisions of the Act, applicable Rules framed thereunder read with the Listing
Regulations. The amount to be borrowed from MPPL will be unsecured and payable on demand
at an interest rate prevailing in the market. The total value of the proposed transaction(s) could
reach Rs. 1 Crore during the next 12 months period.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, of RPTs proposed to be entered into by your Company with MPPL for the next 12 months
period including rationale, material terms and basis of pricing. The Audit Committee, after
discussion and deliberation, has granted approval for RPTs with MPPL for an aggregate value of
up to Rs. I crore to be entered during the next 12 months period. The Committee has noted that
the said transactions will be on an arms’ length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company.

Now, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into by your Company with MPPL for the next 12 months period. ‘
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Details of the transactions with MPPL, being a related party of the Company, including the
information Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as
amended till date, and SEBI Master Circular no. SERI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July
11, 2023, are as follows:

Sl Description Details

1 | Details of Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit
Committee

a | Name of the related party and its M/s. Mangalam Products Pvt Ltd. is a Promoter
relationship with the listed entity or Group Company of M/s. Norben Tea & Exports
its subsidiary, including nature of Ltd.(“Company™)

its concern or interest (financial or

otherwise);
b | Name of the Director or KMP who | NIL
is related
¢ | Nature, material terms, monetary Contract to borrow money not exceeding Rs. 1
value and particulars of the contract | crore in one or more tranches (up to a value of
or arrangement Rs. 50 Lakhs per transaction). Amount to be
borrowed shall be unsecured, payable on demand
and rate of interest shall not exceed 10% per
annum.
d | Tenure of the Transaction Not fixed. The loan shall be repayable on
availability of liquidity.
e | Value of transaction Up to Rs. 1 crore
f | Percentage of annual consolidated 15.21%

turnover of M/s Norben Tea &

Exports Ltd considering FY2023-24

as the immediately preceding

financial year.

2 | Justification for the transaction Please refer to ‘Background, details and benefits
! of the {ransaction’ which forms part of the

statement to the resolution No.7

3 | Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or

s nvestments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: Not Applicable

i, | details of the source of funds in

connection with the proposed

transaction

ii. | where any financial indebtedness is

incurred to make or give loans, Not Applicable

inter-corporate deposits, advances or

investments

- nature of indebtedness;

- cost of funds; and

- tenure

iii. | applicable terms, including

covenants, tenure, interest rate and

repayment *  schedule, whether

secured or unsecured; if secured, the

nature of security
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iv. | the purpose for which the funds will
be utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such funds pursuant
to the RPT

4. | A statement that the valuation or Not Applicable
other external report, if any, relied
upon by the listed entity in relation
to the proposed transaction will be
made available through registered
e-mail address of the shareholder |
5. | Any other information that may be | All important information forms part of the
relevant statement setting out material facts, pursuant to
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
forming part of this Notice.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the related
parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid
transactions or not), shall not vote to approve resolutions under Item No.7.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives,
other than as mentioned above is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution mentioned at Item No.7 of the Notice.

Basis the consideration and approval of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommend
the Ordinary Resolution forming part of Item No.7 of the accompanying Notice to the
shareholders for approval.

By Order of the Board
ForNORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.
Regd.Office:
15B, Hemanta Basu Sarant, 3td Floor, Sd/-
Kolkata-700001. : MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)
Date: 29" May, 2024 DIN: 00123386
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN: L01132WB1990PLC048991
REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Fourth Annual Report together with the Company’s Audited

Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2024,

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended on 31%March, 2024 is summarized below:-

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
(Rs. in thousand) (Rs. in thousand)

Total Revenue ! 66094 78045
Profit before Finance Cost, Depreciation and Taxation {299) 17123
Less : Finance Cost 10733 8258
Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation and Tax (11032) 8865
Less : Depreciation 5807 5485
Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (16839) 3380
Prior Period Expenditure - -
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax {16839) 3380
Less/(Add) : Current Tax - 575
Less/{Add) : Mat Credit - 340
Income Tax for earlier year - .
Provision of Deferred Tax (Credit) 169 342
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (17008) 2119
Other Comprehensive Income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (661) 400 |
Income tax relating to these items 170 (103)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (17499) 2416

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Extremely erratic weather conditions have affected tea production of North India and this is continuing in
the current year also. In financial year 2023-24 our tea prices declined by 11% and production by 6%
resulting in loss. In the current season tea prices are elevated due to shortage and production and prices

during peak season are yet to be seen.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has been no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the reported financial year.

4, DIVIDEND
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2023-24 in view of retaining cash for

your Company’s growth: prospects.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVE
No amount was transferred to general reserve during the financial year ended 31¥March, 2024.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES COMMITTMENTS

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company which has
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of the report.
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7. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review the Company has not altered its share capital.

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Your Company has in place, an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size,
requirements and the nature of operations. These systems are designed keeping in view the nature of
activities, location and various business operations.

9. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Being a listed entity, the financial statements are passing through the Audit Committee and the processes of
Internal and External (Tax and Statutory) Audits, before being approved at the meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Company. The financial statements are regularly updated on the Company’s website and
available to all stakeholders.

10. NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

As on 31% March, 2024, your company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companies.

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not acccpted/renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,

2013.

12. AUDITOR AND AUDITORS REPORT
M/s L. K. Bohania & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 317136E) tendered their
resignation on 25" September, 2023 and their resignation was accepted w.e.f. 25" September, 2023.

Further, M/s. P. D. Rungta & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.001150C) appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company w.e.f.25™ September, 2023, will hold office till the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2023-24.

The Statutory Audit Report has an observation made by the Auditors of the Company in the Auditors’
Report have been dealt with at the appropriate place (s) in the Annual Report in respect of the year ended
31% March, 2024.

13. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board has appointed CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal,
Proprietor of Agarwal:A & Associates, Company Secretaries, Practicing Company Secretary as its
secretarial auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the FY 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report in the
specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure A in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report has a qualification, reservation, adverse remark relating to a show Cause
Notice Ref No. SEBI/EAD-1/BS/10868/1/2024, dated March 18, 2024 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated October 18, 2019 for
non-Compliance of Para 6(A) and 6(B) of said SEBI Circular. The Company duly submitted its response
through email dated March 28, 2024 to the SCN awaiting further views from SEBI.

The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

25



14. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS

There were no instances of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to
report to the Audit Committee and/or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder.

15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION OF TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO _

The information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule § of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given as Annexure B in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

16.EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3), read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return has been uploaded on the Company’s
website at wmar.norbmtaa,comfﬂdﬂextractuﬂheannua[retum March_2024.pdf

17.POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The level of operations of the Company does not conform to the minimum threshold of Corporate Social

Responsibility reporting.

18. DIRECTORS

At present vour Board is duly constituted comprising of 6 (Six) Directors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:
00123386), Mr. Ranjan Kumar JThalaria (DIN: 05353976), Mrs. Swati Agarwal (DIN: 06804522), Mr.
Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN: 08599472), Mr. Deepak Tiwari (DIN:08839075) and Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee
(DIN:08837933). In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

19, DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

There has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the financial year.

Mr. Ashish Pathak was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 February,
2023.

Mrs. Payal Surolia appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 29% May, 2023.

Mr. Ashish Pathak resi gned from the post of Company Secretary with effect from the close of the business
hours on 18" September, 2023,

Mr. Niraj Tiwari was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 9% November,
2023. '

20. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors have met 7 (seven) times during the financial year on 29-05-2023,06-07-2023,03-
08-2023, 25-09-2023, 09-11-2023, 28-11-2023 and 13-02-2024. The maximum time gap between any two
meetings was less than 120 days as stipulated under SEBI's Listing Requirements, 2015.Details of meeting
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21. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 09-11-2023, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria the
lead Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting reviewed the
performance of the non-Independent Directors.

Details of the separate meeting of the independent Directors held and attendance of Independent Directors
therein are provided in the report on corporate governance forming part of this report.

22. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Every Independent Director has, at the first meeting of the Board and also at the first meeting of the Board
after his/her appointment, in the financial year 2023-2024, given a declaration as required u/s.149of the
Companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria of Independence.

23. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF BOARD
The details of the number of committee meetings of Board attended by each Directors during the financial
year 2023-24 is annexed herewith as Annexure C in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

24, AUDIT COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED U/S177(8) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had not been
accepted by the Board.

25. VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and employees in conformation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, to report concerns about unethical behavior.

The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the Company’s website at
https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/Vigil-mechanism-whistle-blower-policy.pdf

26, POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION ETC.

The Company’s policy on Directors” appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided ws.178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is given as Annexure D in the Annexure forming part of this Report,

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The Company has a well-defined process of identification of related parties and transactions with related
parties, its approval and review process. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as formulated by the
Audit  Committee and the Board is hosted on the Company’s website at
https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/policy-on-related-and-materially-related-party transactions.pdf

All contracts, arrangements and transactions entered by the Company with related parties during FY 2023-
24 (including any material modification thereof), were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s
length basis and were carried out with prior approval of the Audit Committee. All related party transactions
that were approved by the Audit Committee were periodically reported to the Audit Committee. Prior
approval of the Audit Committee was obtained petiodically for the transactions which were planned and/or
repetitive in nature and omnibus approvals were also taken as per the policy laid down for unforeseen
transactions. :

The Shareholders approval was obtained under Section 188(1) of the Act and Regulation 23(4) of the
Listing Regulations for material related party transaction. The information on transactions with related
parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 in Form AOC-2 are disclosed as Annexure E in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

28. DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company, have
been disclosed in the financial statements. '
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29, FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD

Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual
directors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the Criteria for Performance Evaluation of
the Directors of the Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
is given as Annexure F in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

30. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a)

b)

d)

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS AND
OUTLOOK

Global Tea production in the calendar year 2023 was higher by around 100 million Kgs compared
to previous year with Sri Lanka and Africa being the driving forces behind the surge. The Indian
tea crop for the financial year 2023-24 was 1382.03 million Kgs as compared to 1370.83 million
kgs in financial year 2022-23, India’s Tea exports, which rose by almost 15% in 2022, was lower in
2023 on the back of the geopolitical situation as India faced challenges in some of the traditional
markets including Iran, Russia and Turkey. The double whammy of sluggish domestic
consumption and low exports dampened the overall price realisation. Average tea prices at auction
centres in North India witnessed a decline of around Rs.17/- per Kg, while average tea prices at
auction centres in South India decreased by approximately Rs.6/- per Kg compared to previous
year.

Indian tea industry has been grappling with an acute financial crisis for the past few years as tea
prices have failed to keep pace with the increasing cost of production. Indian tea prices have
exhibited a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of approximately 4% over the past decade while
the cost of essential inputs have surged at a CAGR of 9-15% during the same period. The
exponential increase in production over the past decade following the emergence of small tea
gardens has resulted in surplus teas remaining in the system as domestic consumption levels and
exports have not matched the increase in production. The organised industry has lost 1% of the
crop every year for a decade majorly due to changing weather patterns and extreme climatic
conditions.

The pie of quality tea in total tea production has shrunk over the years. With its aim to improve
quality control and transparency through centralised auctions, the Ministry of Commerce recently
issued notification mandating the sale of 100 percent dust grade teas through public auctions
starting April, 1, 2024. This step where impartial testing for MRL compliance can be conducted
will help to identify and map chemical misuse in cultivation of tea. It would lead to better price
realisation with a positive impact on the revenue for tea producers, both big and small and also help
in providing a safe and sustainable product to the consumer.

RISKS AND CONCERN

To maintain the level of operations, while ensuring strict compliance of guidelines issued and
adhering to all preventive measures, has been a new challenge. The employees of the Company at
all levels have risen to this and there has not been any loss of life or fixed assets.

The plantation industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall, its
distribution, temperature, relative humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield. Since
timely information of weather plays a vital role for initiating steps towards application of
fertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are taken at the estates to get the weather information
well in advance,

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE
The Company is a Single Business Segment Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations which provides reasonable assurance with regard to safeguarding the
Company's assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost control, preventing revenue leakages
and ensuring adequate financial and accounting controls and compliance with various statutory
provisions.
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31.

32.

33.

€)

)

A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for
strengthening them.

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational Performance have been provided in the
Report of the Directors.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company has built its workforce with a diverse background of individuals - essential for the
kind of organization that it is. The company constantly endeavours to provide a platform where
people have opportunities to actualize their maximum potential through work which helps to
stretch their intellect. Continuous efforts are on for a work-culture which encourages innovation,
transparency in communication, trust and amity.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements ‘made in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be "Forward Looking Statéments" within
the meaning of applicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the currently held
beliefs and assumptions of our management, which are expressed in good faith and in their opinion,
reasonable. Actual results could differ from those expressed and implied since the Company's
operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the
Company. Several factors could make a significant difference to the Company's operations which
includes climatic conditions, economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government
regulations and taxation, natural calamities, raw material price changes, domestic supply and prices
conditions, company's success in attracting and retaining Key Personnel, integration and re-
structuring activities, general business and economic conditions over which the Company does not
have any direct control.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy
for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, which in the opinion of the
Board, may threaten the existence of the Company. The Board monitors and reviews periodically
various aspects of Risk Management policy. At present no particular risk whose adverse impact
may threaten the existence of the Company is visualized.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKSHOP

Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that very women
employee is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero- tolerance towards sexual
harassment invites serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. The policy
allows every employee to freely report any such act and promote action will be taken thereon. The
policy lays down severe punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the
year under review, there were no cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to
the sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/

COURTS/TRIBUNALS
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the

regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in
future.
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34.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of the Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

Applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for
the year ended 31* March, 2024 with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.

Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have
been made which are reasonable and prudent and have been applied so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company in respect of the financial year ended 31* March, 2024
and of the loss of the Company for that period.

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2024 have been prepared on the basis of going
concern concept.

The Directors have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
detailing the policies and procedures and these internal financial controls are adequate and are
being operated effectively.

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

35. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION U/S.197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Ratio of the
s1 % increase / remuneration of each
N : Name Designation decrease in director : inedian
0. . .
remuneration remuneration of the
employees
1 Manoj Kumar Daga Managing Director NIL 4.25:1
2 Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria | Independent Director i NIL
3 Swati Agarwal Independent Director # NIL
4 Balkrishan Agarwal Non-Executive Director # NIL
5 Dipak Tiwari Independent Director # NIL
6 | Tanusree Chatterjee Independent Director # NIL
7 Ashish Pathak CS (Joined on 01,02,2023) - -
8 Payal Surolia CFO(Joined on 29.05 2023) - -
9 Ashish Pathak CS (Resigned on 18.09.2023) 239.15 -
10 | Niraj Tiwari CSoined on 09.11 2023) - -

#Director’s sitting fees is not considered for the purpose of this calculation.

The Company has 91 employees as on 31*March, 2024.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 5.60%.

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase / decrease in
managerial remuneration is 0.01:1.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between Workers
Associations, State Government and Representatives of the Tea Industry. Remuneration paid to other
Employees is fixed. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy
of the Company.

36. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31, 2024 the Company did not have any employee in the category specified in Rule 5(2) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

37. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is given as Annexure G in the

Annexure forming part of this report.

38. COMPLIANCE ,WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (8S-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

39, STOCK EXCHANGE(S)

Notice for resumption of trading in the shares of the Company has been issued by the BSE Ltd on January
05, 2023 wherein BSE has informed that the suspension in trading of equity shares of the company revoked
w.e.f.January 13, 2023. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 dated January
22, 2020 (Erstwhile SEBI Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 dated May 3, 2018), trading in
the securities of the company will be resumed in “T” group at BSE Litd.

40. APPRECIATION .

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Local Gram
Panchayat, Government Departments, Banks, Stakeholders and all others. Special thanks and appreciation
are conveyed to State Bank of India, our banker for providing Covid line of credit to tide over difficult
times.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.
Regd.Office: Sd/-
15B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3 Floor MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
Kolkata-700001 (Chairman & Mg. Director)

DIN: 00123386
Date : 29" May, 2024
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE: “A”

FORM No. MR3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended On 31* March, 2024
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)
To,
The Members, .
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors of Norben Tea & Exports Limited

(L01132WB1990PLC048991) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company

for the financial year ended 31* March, 2024.

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (hereinafter called the Company) having its
Registered Office at 15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001, West Bengal. Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and returns filed and other records
maintained by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (“the company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2024 according to the pravisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;- (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period)

(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (*SEBI Act’)
(2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; :
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018.(Not applicable to the company during the Audit period)
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021.(Not applicable to the company during the Audit period).
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations.
2008.(Not applicable to the company during the Audit period).

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Seccurities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;(Not
applicable to the company during the Audit period).
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable
to the company during the Audit period). -

(vi) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the company as per the
Management Representation letter issued by the company of even date:-

(a) The Tea Act,1953 and rules thereunder
(b) The Food Safety and Standard Act, 2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules,2011.

(¢c) The Tea waste control (Order) 1959
(d) The Tea Marketing Control Order,2003

We have also examineéi compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

@ Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above. Subject to the following observation

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) issued a show Cause Notice Ref No. SEBI/EAD-
1/BS/10868/1/2024, dated March 18, 2024 under Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated October 18,
2019 for non-Compliance of Para 6(A) and 6(B) of said SEBI Circular.

Further, The Company duly submitted its response through email dated March 28, 2024 to the
SCN awaiting further views from SEBL

We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the Audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

(i) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

(iii) All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company
has complied with the laws applicable specifically to the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period there are no specific events /actions which have a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs.
Place; Kolkata For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES

Date: 28" May, 2024 Company Secretaries
Sd/-
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor
C.P No.:13493
M.No.: F7604
Peer Review No0.1592/2021

UDIN: F007604F000474565

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure — A and forms an integral part of
this report.
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

‘ANNEXURE A’
(An integral part of Form No.MR3)

To,

The Members,

Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3" Floor, Kolkata-700001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Qur
responsibility is to expréss an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4, Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. OQur examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test

basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES

Date: 28" May, 2024 Company Secretaries
' Sd/-

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Proprietor

C.P No.:13493

M.No.: F7604

Peer Review No.1592/2021

UDIN: F007604F000474565
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ANNEXURE: “B”

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER THE COMPANIES
{(ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014

A. | Conservation of energy
i) | The steps taken or impact on conservation of energv;
Company’s operatfons involve substantial consumption of energy when compared to the cost of
production. Wherever possible energy conservation and efficiency measures have been undertaken.
The Company’s business involves use of energy only for final processing of Tea leaves. For growing
of Tea leaves, the reliance is more on natural resources of energy than on fossil fuels,
ii) | The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;
The Company constantly considers up-gradation of existing machineries and processes to optimise
use of alternate sources of energy for processing of Tea leaves. Availability of natural gas through
pipeline or bullet tanker is eagerly awaited, which the Company can readily use at a much lower cost
to both the Company and the environment,
iii) | The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:
For all new equipments purchased, weightage is given to conservation of electrical energy to reduce
long term running costs.
B. | Technology absorption
i} | The efforts made towards technology absorption:
The Company subscribes to the Tea Research Association and implements their guldance and
recommendations. The Company has no R&D Unit as such. Furthermore, the Company is moving in
the direction of certifications such as Rain Forest Alliance and follows the Plant Protection Code,
Maximum Residue Levels and the Trustea Code.
if) | The benefits derived like product improvement. cost reduction, product development or import
substitution;
The per hectare 'cost of insecticides and pesticides used for spraying in tea growing areas has
reduced. Only the items appearing in the approved list are used, by which the Company’s produced
has become compliant with more markets having different approval parameters.
iii) | In case of imported technology (imported during the fast three vears reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year) —
a) The details of technology imported : NIL
b) The year of import : NIL
¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed :NA
d) Ifnot fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and
the reasons thereof; and :NA
iv) | The expenditure incurred on Research and Development;
As covered under item (i) above.
C. | Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchiange earned in terms of actual inflows during the vear and the Foreign Exchange

Qutgo during the vear in terms of actual outflows.
Nil

55




ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE “C”

NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF BOARD

The details of the number of committee meetings of Board attended by each Director during the financial

year 2023-24 as follows:

Aundit Committee

S.No.

Date of
Meeting

Attended by

29-05-2023

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan 1 Agarwal, Mrs

. Swati Agarwal

03-08-2023

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs

. Swati Agarwal

25-09-2023

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Swati Agarwal

09-11-2023

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr, Balkrishan A garwal, Mrs

. Swati A garWai

L.} NN AW § P

13-02-2024

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs

. Swati Agarwal

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

S.No. Date of Attended by

Meeting
1 29-05-2023 | Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwal
2 09-11-2023 | Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwal

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

S.No. Date of Attended by
Meeting

1 29-05-2023 | Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwal,
Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga

2 03-08-2023 | Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwal,
Mr, Manoj Kumar Daga

4 09-11-2023 | Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr, Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwal,
Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga

5 13-02-2024 | Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwal,

Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE: “D”

REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction
The Remuneration Policy of Norben Tea & Exports Ltd. (the “Company™), is designed to attract,

motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the
Company's objegtives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation
for shareholders.

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involving a balance
between fixed and incentive pay which reflect short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Appointment of Director(s) is being done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the
Companies Act. 2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION

Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level with
comparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members’ required
competencies, efforts and the scope of the board function, including the number of meetings.

Fixed remuneration

Whole Time Director(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, along with basic
perquisites which is approved by the shareholders of the Company at a General Meeting.

Sitting Fees

The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the Company
keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and complexity.
Incentive programme, bonus pay. etc.

Presently, the Company does not have any incentive programme.

Reimbursement of expenses

Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account
rendered.

Pension scheme

The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of
the other Key Managerial Personnel to ensure that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in
comparable companies.

Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of
the following components:

-+ Fixed salary

-+ Bonus

.- Benefits, e.g. use of company car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed salarv

The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.

Variable components

Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.




Personal benefits

Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits, including
company cat, free telephone, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and magazines. The
extent of individual benefits is not necessarily same for each individual member of the Executive
Management.

Other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies:
-+ Accident insurance

-+ Health insurance

-+ Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Notice of termination

The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months’ notice on either side.

Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.

Retirement Benefits

Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a
defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

Disclosure

The total remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of
other employees and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in comparable
companies.

Other Employees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following
components;

-~ Fixed salary

-~ Bonus

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically

reviewed based on performance appraisal.

Variable components

Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure,

Other benefits

Housing/Housing Repair Allowance.

Notice of termination

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.

Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.

Retirement Benefits

Other Employees are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a defined benefit
pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided. Gratuity is covered
as per the Act.

Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of director

The Company will follow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
and under Regulation 19(4) of the Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchange(s) in determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of director.
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Particulars of contracis / arrangements made with related
section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Com

ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE: “E”

FORM NO. AOC.2

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transacti
The Company has not entered into any contract

basis during the year under review.

Details of material contracts or arran
The details of material contracts or

March 31, 2024 are as follows:

gement or transactions at arm's length basis:
arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended

ons not at arm's length basis: NIL
Or arrangement or transaction which is not at arm’s length

parties (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-
panies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company

with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

Name of the Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of Date(s) of | Amount | Amount
related party | Contracts/ Contracts/ the Contracts/ approval (Rs. In paid as
Nature of Arrangements/ | Arrangements/ Arrangements/T | by the Lakhs) advances,
Relationship | Transactions Transactions ransactions Board, if if any
any (Rs. in
: Lakhs)
M/s Tongani Sale of tea plant/ | 12 months Sale of tea leaves | NA 14.85 Nil
Tea Co. Ltd. cutting at prevailing
(Promoter market price
group based on standard
Company) industry terms.
M/s Tongani Loan Taken 12 months Contract to 13.02.2024 | * 348.65
Tea Co. Ltd. borrow money not
(Promoter exceeding Rs. 5
group Crore in one or
Company) more tranches

l

(upto a value of
Rs. 1 Crore per
transaction).
Amount to be
borrowed shall be
unsecured,
payable on
demand and rate
of interest shall be
10% per annum.

* The opening balance of Rs.60,13,629/- as on 01.04.2023 stood at Rs.61,15,293/- as on 31.03.2024.
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ANNEXURE: “F”
THE CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible to create a process for making such assessment to report annually to the Board on the
results of the assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of
the Board. The various Committees of the Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment of their
performance and respective Terms of Reference.
Formal annual evluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and
Individual Directors shall also be done as outlined below:
The Company will follow a seven step system of the following processes for evaluation:
METHODOLOGY
What the Company hopes to achieve?
Clearly identified objectives will enable the Company to set specific goals for the evaluation and
make decisions about the scope of the review. Such issues as the complexity of the performance
problem, the size of the board, the stage of organisational life cycle and significant developments in
the firm’s competitive environment will determine the issues the Company wishes to evaluate.
‘Who will be evaluated?
With the objectives for the evaluation set, the Company needs to decide whose performance will be
reviewed to meet them. '
The Company needs to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees),
individual directors (including the roles of chairperson and/or lead independent director), and key
governance personnel (generally the CFO and Company Secretary).
What will be evaluated?
Having established the objectives of the evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to
achieve those objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation becoming specific. Tt is now
necessary to elaborate these objectives into a number of specific topics to ensure that the evaluation
(1) clarifies any potential problems, (2) identifies the root cause(s) of these problems, and (3) tests
the practicality of specific governance solutions, wherever possible. This is necessary whether the
board is seeking general or specific performance improvements and will suit bosrds seeking to
improve areas as diverse as board processes, director skills, competencies and motivation, or even
boardroom relationships.
Who will be asked?
Internally, Board members, the CEQ, senior managers and, in some cases, other management
personnel and employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on elements of a
company’s governance system.
Externally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review.
Similarly, in some situations, government departments, major customers and suppliers may have
close links with the board and be in a position to provide useful information on its performance.
What techniques will be used?
Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives of the evaluation, and the resources available,
boards may choose between a range of qualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evaluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate
person is to conduct the evaluation. If the review is an internal one, the chairperson commonly
conducts the evaluation. However, there are times when it may be more appropriate to delegate
either to a non-executive or lead director, or to a board committee. In the case of external
evaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with expertise in the areas of corporate
governance and performance evaluation may lead the process.
What do you do with the results?
Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be
released to the board in all but the most unusual of circumstances. Where the evaluation objectives
are focused entirely on the board, board members will simply discuss the results among
themselves.
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE: “G”
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OFCORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
TO s
THE MEMBERS OF

Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(CIN:LO1132WB1990PLC048991)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Norben Tea &
Exports Ltd. (“the Company®), for the year ended on 31* March, 2024, as stipulated in relevant
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the said Company with stock exchange.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, read
with the matter described hereinabove, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of Security and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Regulations®), of the said
Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

Plot No.IID/31/1, Street No.1111, For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
PS Qube, Unit No.1015A, Company Secretaries
10" Floor, Beside City Centre 2, Sd/-
Kolkata — 700 161. ] CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P.No.13493

M.No.:F7604

Place : Kolkata Peer Review No.1592/2021
Dated : The 8% Day of June, 2024 UDIN : F007604F000548727
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulation™)

Company’s Philosophy

The Company firmly believes in adhering to established corporate governance practices in order to
protect the interests of investors and ensure healthy growth of the Company. The Company
stringently compilies with the corporate governance practices as enumerated in the Securities and
Exchange Bodrd of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
{hereinafter referred to as the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015}.

The Company believes that the concept of corporate governance is founded upon the core values
of transparency, empowerment, accountability, independent monitoring and environmental
consciousness. The Company has always given its best efforts to uphold and nurture these values
across all operational aspects. As a means to this end, the Company formed a Board comprising
reputed experts, and inducted persons of eminence as Independent Directors. These people
contribute to corporate strategizing and provide external perspectives, wherever appropriate.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises professionals drawn from diverse fields, resulting in a wide
range of skills and experience being brought to the Board. The Company’s policy is to maintain an
optimal combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on 31¥ March 2024, the Board
comprised an Executive Chairman cum Managing Director, and five Non-Executive Directors
including four Independent Directors. The Company also had two women Directors on its Board.
The detailed profiles of all the Directors are available on the Company’s website:
www.norbentea.com. The Company complied with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 with respect to
the Composition of the Board.

The Company has an efficient and well appointed Board. The Committees are all duly formed and
Mr. Niraj Tiwari, Company Secretary of the Company, acts as the Secretary to all the committee
meetings of the Company. All committee meetings are attended by such other Executives as
required.

The Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and -
documents are made available to the Directors and the senior management for effective decision-
making at the meeting.

Composition of Board

The Company has an Executive Chairman & Managing Director and more than 50% of the total
numbers of Directors are Independent Directors who bring independent views/opinions in the
Board’s deliberations and decisions.
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During the financial year 2023-2024 the Board met 7 (seven) times. The gap between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days.

SN | Date of Attended by
0. Meeting  of | Mr.Manof Mr. Ranjan | Mrs. Swati | Mr. Balkrishan | Mr. Dipak | Ms. Tanusree
Board  of | Kumar Daga | Kumar Agarwal Agarwal Tiwari Chatterjee
Directors Jhalaria
1 29-05-2023 Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 06-07-2023 Y Y Y Y Y Y
3 03-08-2023 Y Y Y Y Y Y
4 25-09-2023 Y Y Y N Y N
5 09-11-2023 Y Y Y Y Y Y
6 28-11-2023 Y Y Y N Y N
7 13-02-2024 Y Y Y Y Y Y ]
*Y-Yes, N-No
The information as required under Schedule V of Listing Regulation is as under:
Relationships No. of No of .
Name bt_:tween Category Designation e pilies CIT;t;:laNnush?f 1\1'11:1?2:32:1]:{1 fliencance
Directors Mectings Director- th Cp & at last AGM
Inter-se attended ship held e Lompany
Membership Chairmanship
Managing
Mr. Manoj Kumar Promot_er & Diirector Yes
Not related Executive . . 7 ] 3 2
Daga Di (liable to retire by
irector .
rotation)
. Independent &
M, Ra_uuan Not related Non-executive Director 7 1 2 2 Yes
Kumar Jhalaria Di
irector
Mrs Swati Independent &
Not related Non-executive Director 7 2 - Yes
Agarwal Di
irector
Mr Balkrishan Non-executive Director (Liable to
Agarwal Blot rgied Director retire by rotation) 3 ) 2 ) No
g Independent &
Mr. Dipak Tiwari | Not related Non-executive Director 7 1 No
Director
Tanusree independent &
. Not related Non-gxecutive Director 5 B - Yes
Chatterjee .
Director

The names of listed companies wherein the above Board members are directors and category of
their directorship are detailed below. None of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director by SEB/MCA or any such
statutory authority. .

The Independent Directors comply with the definition of Independent Directors as given under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015. At the time of appointment/reappointment and at the commencement of each
financial year, every Independent Director signs a declaration to confirm that he/she fulfills all the
conditions for being an Independent Director as laid down by the law. While
appointing/reappointing any Independent Directors / Non-Executive Directors on the Board,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NR Committee) considers the criteria as laid down in
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Board
Diversity policy.
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The names of the listed entities where the person is a Director and the category of directorship.

S.N. | Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386)
Listed Entities Category of Directorship
1 Shri Vasuprada Plantations Limited Non-Executive
(Formerly:  Joonktollee Tea &
Industries Ltd.
2 Tongani Tea Company Ltd. Non-Executive

None of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors holds any shares in the Company.

Number of committees in which a Director may serve excludes private limited companies, foreign
companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees nor Chairman of
more than 5 committees [as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of Listing Regulation] across all the public
limited companies in which he/she is a Director.

Membership/Chairmanship of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of
all the Public Limited Companies have been considered only.

Relationship between the Directors inter-se:

Name of the Director | Name of other Director | Name of Relationship

NA

*No other Directors in the Board are inter se related to each other.

Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors of the Company in
their own name, as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Name of the Director No of Equity Shares
Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria Nil
Swati Agarwal Nil
Balkrishan Agarwal Nil
Dipak Tiwari Nil
Tanusree Chatterjee Nil

Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors

The Company in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, has
taken initiatives to familiarize its Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model of the company etc. through various programs. The details of Familiarization Programme
imparted to independent directors has been uploaded on the Company’s website at
https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/2023-24-familiarization-and-training-programmes-imparted-to-
the-independent-directors.pdf
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Skills/Experts/Competencies of the Board of Directors

Skills and its description

Manoj Kumar Daga

Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria

Swati Agarwal

Balkrishan Agarwal

Dipak Tiwari

Tanusree Chatterjee

| Leadership experience of running enterprise -

Experience in leading well-governed organisations, with an
understanding of organisational systems and processes business and
regulatory environment, strategic planning and risk management,
understanding of emerging local and global trends and management of
accountability and performance.

<

<

\

<

<

<

Experience of crafting Business Strategies -

Experience in developing long-term strategies to grow small tea
plantation business, consistently, profitably, competitively and ina
sustainable manner in diverse business environments and changing
economic conditions.

Finance and accounting Experience -

Experience in handling financial management of organisation along
with an understanding of accounting and financial statements.

Experience in overseeing large and complex Supply Chain -

Experience in overseeing large and complex supply chain operations,
management of innovations, understanding of emerging technologies
including digital information technologies and their disruptive impact.

Understanding use of Information across the tea value chain -

Understanding the use information across the value chain, ability to
anticipate market and weather driven changes and disruption
impacting business and appreciation of the need to realise value and
controls across the organisation.

Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the Management

The Board of Director is opinion that the Independent Directors are fulfill the conditions which is
specified in the Regulation 25 of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 and are independent of the Management of the Company.

Committees of the Board
With an objective to have a more focused attention on various facets of business, better

accountability and ensuring compliances, the Board has constituted the committees, which comply
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015,
these comprise:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Share Transfer Committee

4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Each of these committees has been mandated to operate within a given framework. The details of
composition of the above mentioned committees is available on the Company’s website:
www.norbentea.com
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (AC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Brief description of the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are:

a. Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information.

b. Recommend the appointment/removal of statutory auditors, nature and scope of audit, fixation
of audit fee and payment for any other services to statutory auditors.

¢. Review with the management the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board.

d. Review with the management, statutory and internal auditors, the internal audit reports and the
reports of statutory auditors.

€. Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Audit function, the internal control
system of the Company, compliance with the Company’s policies and applicable laws and
regulations.

f. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience & background, etc. of the candidate.

The Audit Committee may also review such matters as considered appropriate by it or referred to
it by the Board.

Composition and other details
The Audit Committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar
Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal and, Mrs. Swati Agarwal,

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Chairman of the Committee, has expert knowledge of finance and
accounting.

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria is the Chairman of the Committee was duly present at the 33™ Annual
General Meeting held on 28" July, 2023. The Company complies with the Regulation 18 of SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015 with respect to composition, role and responsibilities of Audit
Committee.

During the financial year 2023-2024 the Committee met 5 (five) times as follows:

S.No. Date of Meeting of Audit Committee Attended by
1 29-05-2023 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independeni Director
2 03-08-2023 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director
Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director

3 25-09-2023 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director
' Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director
4 09-11-2023 Mr, Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director

5 13-02-2024 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director
' Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Switi Agarwal, Independent Director

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors to
evaluate compensation and benefits to Executive Director(s). The broad terms of reference are to
determine and recommend to the Board, remuneration payable to Executive Directors,
remuneration policy of the company and appraisal of performance of the Directors, The
Remuneration Policy is given in the Annexure "D’ to the Directors Report.

Composition and other details
The Committée comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Chairman of the Committee.

The functions of the Committee include;

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to remuneration
of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Non Independent Directors,
the Chairman, the Board as a whole and other Committees

To devise a policy on Board diversity. Identifying persons who are qualified to become a
Director and who may be appointed in senior management.

To evaluate, review and recommend to the Board, the remuneration of the Executive
Directors, striking a balance between performance and achievement.

To discuss and decide whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of
Independent Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent
Directors.

During the financial year 2023-2024 the Committee met 2 (two) timesas follows:

S.No. | Date of Meeting of Nomination & Remuneration | Attended by
Committee
1 29-05-2023 Mr. RanjanKumarJhalaria, Independent Director
Mr. BalkrishanA garwal, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director
2 09-11-2023 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director

Remuneration of Directors

A sitting fee of Rs.2500/- is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending each meeting of the
Board and Rs.1000/- for each meeting of the Committee. During the Financial Year 2023-2024,
following was the remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending board meetings and
other committee meetings:

Director Sitting Fee
(Rs.)
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria 29,500
Mrs. Swati Agarwal 29,500
Mr, Balkrishan Agarwal 22,500
Mr. Dipak Tiwari 18,500
Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee 13,500 |
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The remuneration and terms of appointment of the Managing Director are approved by the Board
of Directors and the shareholders of the Company subject to Government approval whenever
required as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has only one whole time
Director, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga who is the Managing Director (MD) of the Company. He has
been appointed for a term of 5 years from 01/04/2024 to 3 1/03/2029 as per the Agreement dated
28/07/2023. He is paid a salary of Rs.6.60,000/- (Rupees Six Lakhs Sixty Thousand) annually,
besides other perquisites. Notice or payment in lieu of notice is not applicable as per the
Agreement. The Company shall not pay any severance fees as per the Agreement. The Company
has not given any stock option.

During the Financial Year 2023-2024, following was the remuneration paid to Executive Director:

Director Salary Contribution | Other | Tenure of Service Variable Total
toPF & Benefits | Contract Component | remuneration
others
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) . (Rs.) (Rs.)
. 3 years from
g‘;'g:‘a""-' Kumar 6,60,000 21,600 01/04/2024 to 6,81,600
31/03/2029

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. The
Committee responsible for looking after and dealing with grievance received from investors of
the Company.

Composition and other details

The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga and Mrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria is the
Chairman of the Committee.

Mr. Niraj Tiwari, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

The functions of the Committee include:

e Considering and resolving the grievances of security holders of the Company;

* Providing guidance for overall improvement in the quality of services to investors;

* Dissemination of factually correct information to investors and the public at large;

¢ Any other matter(s) out of and incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by

the Board

Number of Shareholders' complaints received during the financial year Nil
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil
Number of pending complaints Nil

With effect from 27" June, 2011 in terms of SEBI Circular No.CIR/OIAE/2/20] 1, dated 3" June,
2011, processing and updating of all investor complaints in SEBI Complaints Redress System
(SCORES}) is being done on behalf of the Company by its RTA.

Share Transfer Committee
In terms of the Listing Regulations, equity shares of the Company can only be transferred in
dematerialised form. Requests for dematerialisation of shares are processed and confirmation
thereof is given to the respective depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited [NSDL]
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited [CDSL), within the statutory time limit from the
dateof receipt of share certificates/ letter of confirmation after due verification.
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The functions of the committee include:

Approval of transmission or transposition of securities of the Company;

To deal with rematerialization requests and IEPF related matters;

Overseeing of the performance of the registrar and share transfer agents of the Company;
Redressal of shareholders’ complaints relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual
reports and non-receipt of declared dividend, among others;

Disposal of old stationeries of dividend warrants, among others;

Issue of duplicate share certificates;

Recommending upgradation measures for the standard of service to investors;

Any other matter(s) out of and incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by
the Board.

Composition and other details
The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz.: Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

There were no valid requests pending for share transfer as on 31% March, 2024. All requests for
dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares received in the aforesaid period were confirmed
or rejected inté the NSDL/CDSL system.

A call Centre has been set up to attend to the calls of the investors. The call Centre number is
(033) 2210-0553.

General Body Meetings

Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings held:-

Financial Date Location Time No. of Members presented by |
year Special Person Proxy
ended Resolution
2021 11.08.21 | Through Video Conferencing (“VC™) / | 10:30 a.m. Nil 34
2022 | 29.07.22 | Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 11:30 am. Nil 48 -
2023 | 28.07.23 11.30 a.m. Nil | 66 -

No special resolution was passed during the previous year through postal ballot.
No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

Means of Communication
The quarterly financial results are being sent to the Stock Exchanges and are being published in *
the newspapers: The Financial Express (English daily) and in vernacular, Duranto Barta (Bengali
daily) as per proforma prescribed under the Listing Regulation.

The same is also displayed on the Company’s Website: www.norbentea.com.
This website also displays official news releases,

The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, if any, are displayed on the
website.
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9. General Shareholders Information

(8 AGM: Date, Time and Venue Friday, the 9™ August, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. Through
Video Conferencing (“VC”) /Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”).
(b)  Financial Year April 2023 to March 2024.
(c)  Dividend Payment Date & --
(d)  Listing on Stock Exchanges :
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd,
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot no: C/1 Phiroze Jegjeebhoy Towers, 25% Floor,
G Block, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051. Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.
Listing fees for the year 2024-25 have not yet been paid.
(e)  Stock code:
National Stock Exchange of India Limited NORBTEAEXP
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 519528
(f)  Resumption of trading at BSE Notice for resumption of trading in the
shares of the Company has been issued
by the BSE Ltd on January 05, 2023
wherein BSE has informed that the
suspension in trading of equity shares of
the company revoked w.e.f. January
13, 2023. Pursuant to SEBI Circular
No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12
dated January 22, 2020 (Erstwhile
SEBI Circular
No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77
dated May 3, 2018), trading in
the securities of the company will be
resumed in “T” group at BSE Ltd.
Please refer last page of Directors’
Report.
(8)  Stock Market Price Data and Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:
High, Low during each month in last financial year :
Market Price at NSE Sensex (BSE)
Month & Year |, High Low High Low
April °23 8.95 6.80 61209.46 58793.08
May 23 9.45 7.40 63036.12 61002.17
June '23 8.95 7.15 64768.58 62359.14
July "23 8.70 7.00 67619.17 64836.16
Aug ’23 8.45 7.30 60658.12 64723.63
Sept *23 14.90 7.55 67927.23 64818.37
Oct 23 14.25 10.85 66592.16 63092.98
Nov ’23 14.15 9.80 67069.89 63550.46
Dec ’23 12.45 10.85 72484.34 67149.07
Jan 24 15.95 11.00 73427.59 70001.60
Feb 24 13.35 10.70 73413.93 70809.84
Mar *24 15.45 11.05 74245.17 71674.42
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(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
383, Lake Gardens, 1% Floor,
Kolkata — 700 045.
Telephone:033-4072 4051; Fax: 033-4072 4050
E-mail: messta@rediffimail.com
Website : www.mcsregistrars.com
(i) Share Transfer System:
The Company’s shares are covered under the compulsory dematerialization list and transferred
in dematerialised form through the depository systems of both NSDL & CDSL. Further, MCS
Share Transfer Agent Limited also being the Company’s demat Registrars, requests for
dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmation is given by them to the respective
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services India Limited (CDSL) within 15 days.
(j) Distribution of shareholding :
Category (No. of" No. of Shareholders No. of Shares heid % of Equity
shares)
From To Physical Form Demat Physical Demat Physical Demat
Form Form Form Form Form
1 500 14606 9637 2124606 1310761 18.08 11.16
501 1000 153 462 130000 385698 1.11 3.28
1001 2000 54 180 79900 278403 0.68 2.37
2001 3000 9 57 22400 141910 0.19 1.21
3001 4000 2 27 6400 95529 0.05 0.81
4001 5000 6 19 27900 87169 0.24 0.74
5001 10000 3 22 20300 154816 0.17 1.32
10001 and above 0 25 0 6884208 0.00 58.59
Total 14833 10429 2411506 0338494 20.52 79.48
Grand Total 25262 11750000 100.00
Shareholding Pattern as on 315 March 2024
Category No. of shares held % of shares held
Promoters, Directors & Relatives 6044759 51.44
Non Resident Individual 27698 0.24
Indian Financial Institutions 0 0.00
Nationalised Banks and Mutual Funds 14400 0.12
Other Bodies Corporate 357934 3.05
Public 5295598 45.07
Any other
- Clearing member 8608 0.07
- Trusts 1003 0.01
Total 11750000 100.00
(k) Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity :

Demat ISIN No.INE369C(01017

M

impact on Equity :

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely

as on 31* March, 2024,

The Company did not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or Convertible Instruments
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Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

(m)

(n) Plant Location: P.O. Kuripara, Dist: Jalpaiguri~735132, West Bengal.

(0) Address for correspondence: Norben Tea & Exports Limited

15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3" Floor,
Kolkata-700 001.
Telephone No: 2210-0553; Fax : 2210 0541.

(p) List of all credit rating obtained by | NIL
the entity along with any revisions
thereto during the relevant financial
year, for all debt instruments of such
entity or any fixed deposit
Programme or any scheme or
proposal of the listed entity
involving mobilization of funds,
whether in India or abroad.

10. Other Disclosure :

(a) Disclosures on materially significant | There were no materially-significant related-party transactions that may
related party transactions that may | have potentially conflict with interest of the company at large and all
have potential conflict with the contracts/agreerr_lents/transacti_ons entered into during the pel:iod wit.h
interests of listed entity at large the related parties were carried out at an arm’s length basis at fair

market value.

(b) Details of non-compliance by the | The equity shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock

listed entity, penalties, strictures
imposed on the listed entity by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any
statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the
last three years

Exchange of India Limited with effect from June 26, 1996,

The equity shares of the Company are also listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd. with effect from 25" November, 1994. However, BSE
has suspended in trading of equity shares of the Company w.e.f,3"
January, 2002. Further, notice for resumption of trading in the
shares of the Company has been issued by the BSE Ltd on
January 05, 2023 wherein BSE has informed that the suspension
in trading of equity shares of the company revoked
w.e.fJanuary 13, 2023,

There were no instances of non-compliance observed for regulations of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 covered under SEBI SOP Circular for last two YEArs.

As per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulation™), the Board of Directors of the tap 1000 listed entities
(with effect from April 1, 2019) and the top 2000 listed entities {with
effect from April 1, 2020) shall comprise of riot less than six Directors.

The Company's interpretation was that this is applicable to all listed
entities across NSE, BSE and MSEI, in which case Company does not
fall in the top 2000,

Non-Compliance Details

Period June 30, 2020

Regulation 17(1) ()
{Composition of Board)

Regulation

Details  of Non- | As per NSE the Company was not having

Compliance minimum six Directors on its Board from April 01,
2020 to August 23, 2020

Days of non- | For quarter ended June 30, 2020 — 91 days

compliance

Fine details For quarter ended Tune 30, 2020 — Rs.4.55,000/-
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n-Compli iz

Period September 30, 2020

Regulation Regulation 17(1) (c)
{Composition of Board)

Details  of  Non- | As per NSE the Company was not having

Compliance minimum six Directors on its Board from
April 01. 2020 to August 23, 2020

Days of non- | For quarter ended September 30, 2020 — 54

compliance days

Fine details For quarter ended September 30, 2020 -
Rs.2,70,000/-

Mon-Compliance Details

Period September 30, 2020 ]

Regulation Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015(Related Party
T ransaction)

Details ~ of  Non- | As per NSE the Company has not complied

Compliance regulation under 23(9) of SEBI (L.ODR)
Regulations, 2015 within 30 days from
the date of Board Meeting
1.2.10/11/2020,

Days of non- | For quarter ended September 30, 2020 — 39

compliance days

Fine details and waiver | For quarter ended September 30, 2020 —

thereof Rs.1,95,000/-. The Company filed an
application to NSE for waiver of fine,
The NSE vide its
Ref.No.NSE/LIST/SOF/NORBTEAEXP
dated 20" May, 2021 granted the waiver. I

and Report Trading

(©) Details of establishment of vigil | The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle
mechanism, whistle blower policy, | Blower Policy. It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied
and affirmation that no personnel | access to the Audit Committee.
has been denied access to the audit
committee

(d) Details of compliance  with | The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory
mandatory  requirements and | requirements of Corporate Governance as specified under
adoption of the non-mandatory | Schedule IT of the Listing Regulation.
requirements The Company has adopted the following discretionary (non-

mandatory) requirements as stated in Schedule II-Part E, Clause
E of the Listing Regulation: (i) adopting the financial statement
with unmodified audit opinion, (ii) the internal auditor reportmg
directly to the Audit Committee.
(e) Weblinks to:
i. | Policy for determining ‘material’ N.A.
subsidiaries
ii. | Familiarisation = Programme for hitps//www.norbentea.com/pdf/Familiarisationprogramme-
Independent Directors Norben.pdf
iii. | Related Party Transaction Policy https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/policy-on-related-and-
: materiaily-related-party-transactions. pdf
iv. | Preservation of documents and | : | https:/www norbentea.com/pdfipreservation_of documents
Archival Policy and_archival policy.pdf
v. | Code of Conduct https.//www.norbentea.com/pdficode-of-conduct pdf
vi. | Whistle Blower Policy https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/'Vigil-mechanism-whistle-
blower-policy.pdf
vii. | Policy on Harassment hitps://www.norbentea.com/pdf/policy-on-harrassment. pdf
viii. | Code of Conduct Regulate, Monitor https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/code of conduct to regculate
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Code of Practices and Procedures

https://www.norbentea.com/pdf/code of practices and proc

1X.
for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished edures. pdf
Price Sensitive Information
X. | Ethics Policy hitps://www.norbentea.com/pdfiethics_policy.pdf
xi. | Food Safety Policy & Objectives https://www.norbentea.c fifood_safety polic ohje
clives.pdf
xil. | Risk Assessment in Plantation and https.//www.norbentea.com/pdf/risk_assessment in plantatio

Factory

nand factory.pdf

Xiil,

Policy for Determination of
Materiality of Events or Information

https://www.norbentea.com/pdfipolicy for determination of |
materiality_of events_or_information.pdf

®

Disclosure of commodity price risks
and commodity hedging activities

N.A.

(&)

Details of utilization of funds raised
through preferential allotment or
qualified institutional placement as
specified under Regulation 32 (7A)

NIL

(h)

Certificate from a Company
Secretary in practice that none of
the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Board / Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority.

The Company has received a Certificate from Agarwal A &
Associates, Company Secretary in practice that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
statutory.

@)

Where the Board has not accepted
any recommendation of any
committee of the Board.

Provided that the clause shall only
apply where recommendation of /
submission by the committee is
required for the approval of the
Board of Directors and shall not
apply where prior approval of the
relevant committee is required for
undertaking any transaction under
these regulations

NIL

Q)

Total fees for all services paid by the
listed entity and its Subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis, to the Statutory
Auditors and all entities in the
network firm/ network entity of which
the Statutory ‘Auditor is a part.

The fees for the year 2023-24 for various services of M/s. P. D.
Rungta & Co., Chartered Accountant which includes Statutory
Audit, Limited Reviews and Certification work amounts to
Rs.1,50,000/- y

(k)

The sexual harassment of women at
workplace (prevention, prohibition
and redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in
line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral. During the year under
review, no complaints with allegations of sexual harassment
were filed.
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11.

12,

13.

14.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015 the Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related-party transactions and on dealings
with related-party transactions which can be accessed at: hitps://'www.norbentea. com/pdt/policy-on-

related-and-materd a|l}:d‘ﬂlﬂlﬂd—g@'—ttﬁnsattiﬂnﬁ,pjf

All related-party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the transaction. Related-
party transactions of repetitive nature are approved by the Audit Committee on an omnibus basis for
one financial year at a time. All transactions pursuant to omnibus approval are reviewed by the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis.

A confirmation of compliance pertaining to related-party transaction as per SEBI Listing Regulations,
20135, is also sent along with the quarterly compliance report on corporate governance,

As per the Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations the disclosures of related party
transactions on a consolidated basis have been submitted by the Company for the half year ended 30"
September, 2023 and for the 2" half and full year ended 31% March, 2024 to the Stock Exchanges and
published the same on the website of the Company.

There were no materially-significant related-party transactions that may have potentially conflict with
interest of the company at large and all contracts/agreements/transactions entered into during the
period with the related parties were carried out at an arm’s length basis at fair market value.

Details of such transactions as per requirements of INDAS24 are disclosed in Note 48 to the audited
accounts. A statement of these transactions was also placed before the Audit Committee and in the
Board meetings from time to time.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company followed the guidelines as laid down in the IND-AS, prescribed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, for the preparation of the financial statements,

PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, RIGHT ISSUES AND PREFERENTIAL ISSUES,
AMONG OTHERS

The Company did.not have any of the above issues during the year under review.

OBSERVANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has issued secretarial standards on board meetings &
general meetings and also issued draft secretarial standards for payment of dividend, maintenance of
register and records, minutes of meetings, transmission of shares and debentures, passing of resolution
by circulation, affixing of common seal among others. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
mandated SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to board/commitiee meetings and, general meetings
respectively. The Company has complied with these standards.
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15.

16.

AUDIT REPORT FOR RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

M/s. Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the
total admitted equity share capital with the NSDL and the CDSL and the total issued and listed equity
share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with the
NSDL and the CDSL.

DISCLOSURE OF NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT OF SUB-PARAS AS DETAILED ABOVE. WITH REASONS
THEREOF

There is no non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras as
detailed above, thus no explanations need to be given save and except as mentioned in para (b) above.

17. DISCLOSURE OF THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE I1 HAVE BEEN ADOPTED

Office to Non-executive Chairperson : Since the Company is headed by Executive Chairman;
maintenance of separate office is not required.

The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

18. DISCLOSURES OF THE _COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

19.

20.

21.

REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF
SUB - REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION (46)

The Company has complied with the requirements of aforesaid Regulations.

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED
SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

As on 31* March, 2024, there are no outstanding shares of the Company lying in the demat suspense /
unclaimed suspense account,

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Company is duly placing a certificate to the Board from the Managing Director (CEQO) and the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of the proviso to
Regulation 33(2)(a) of the Listing Regulation. The aforesaid certificate duly signed by the said
persons in respect of the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 has been placed before the Board at
the Meeting held on 29™ May, 2024.

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the
Company pursuant to Clause D of Schedule V of Listing Regulation with Stock Exchanges.

All the members of the Board and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the said Code of Conduct on an annual basis.
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22. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has framed Code of Conduct for all the Board Members, Key Managerial Personnel
and other Senior Executives of the Company who have affirmed compliance with the same as on 31
March, 2024, Duties of the Independent Directors have suitably been incorporated in the code. The
Code is displayed on the Company's website: www.norbentea.com. A declaration signed by the
Managing Director & CEO is obtained by the Company.

In pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations 1992 (as amended), the Board has approved the 'Code of Conduct for prevention of
Insider Trading' and entrusted the Audit Committee to monitor the compliance of the code. The Board
at its meeting held on 14™ May, 2015 has approved and adopted the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 relating to the code of practices and procedure for fair disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and formulated the code of conduct of the Company.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

<sa/-

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
Date: 29" May, 2024 Managing Director
DIN: 00123386



P. D. RUNGTA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Norben Tea & Exports Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Norben Tea & Exports Limited (the
“Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2024, and its Loss
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report,
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter -

a. Balances under sundry debtors/trade receivables and loans and advances given by the
company are subject to confirmations and in absence of such confirmations and -
reconciliations, consequential impact of the same if any on financial statements of the
company could not be ascertained.

b. Balances under sundry creditors/trade payables and unsecured loans taken by the
company are subject to confirmations and in absence of such confirmations and
reconciliations, consequential impact of the same on financial statements of the company
could not be ascertained.

¢. Details of opening balance of interest receivable amounting to Rs.17,67,093/ - shown under
other financial assets have not been provided by management.
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d. Details of advances recorded under other financial assets having opening debit balance
lying unadjusted during the year totaling to Rs.15,78,246/ - and liabilities having opening
credit balance lying unadjusted during the year total amounting to Rs.1,81,914/- recorded
under other liabilities & employee’s benefits obligations have not been provided by
management and consequential impact of the same if any on financial statements of the
company could not be ascertained.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion
and Analysis, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in_
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.




In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are -
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative




factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and‘other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We described this matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determined that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “ Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st -
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is m accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.




h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company
or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year.

Hence, compliance in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used two
different accounting software, one for maintaining its books of account of Head Office
and another for maintaining its books of account of Tea Garden.

rtared | '_.| '

52 \ untanig |



The accounting software used for maintaining its books of account at Head Office
level, have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated
throughout the year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Whereas, the accounting software used by the Company for maintaining its books of
account at Tea Garden doesn’t have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

For P. D. Rungta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001150C
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CA Ritesh Kumar Shaw
Place: Kolkata Pariner
Date ) Q_Q9¢C-20 '2,\.' (Membership No. 305929)
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Annexure-A to Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date to the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 315t March 2024.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the course of audit, we state that:

®

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B)The Company does not have any intangible asset therefore, the provision of clause (i)(a)(B) of

®)

(©

paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the company.

As explained to us the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we
report that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which
are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible assets

()

during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

()As per the information obtained by us, the inventories have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
only. Thus, reporting under Clause (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable
to the company.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iif) (a) to (f) of
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not provided any loans, guarantees, securities and has not made any
investments for which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act is required to complied
with.Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits under
the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where
applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.
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To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government of India has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. Thus, reporting under
Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable to the company.

(vii)  (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, and records, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, and any other statutory dues with appropriate authorities. According to information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in
arrears as at 315 March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable, except following:

| SL.No. | Particulars . Amount (Rupees in Hundreds)
11 Tax Deducted at Source 2906.30
2 | Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 20178.63
(b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents
and records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities are as under:
Name of the | Nature  of Amount Amount paid | Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rupeesin | under dispute | whichthe | dispute is
Hundreds) (Rupees in amount pending
Hundreds) relates
(Financial
Year)

Income Tax Income Tax 24,650.00 - 1995-1996 DCIT, Kolkata
Income Tax | Income Tax 8456.70 441293 | 20102011 | CIT(A), Kolkata |
Income Tax Income Tax B 62,557.7_0 [ 9,393 66 [ 2012-2013 | CIT(A), Kolkata __i
Income Tax | Income Tax 5809.70 | 1181.50 2013-2014 CIT(A), Kolkata |
Income Tax | Income Tax | 11,714.64 |  1210.00 2016-2017 | CIT(A), Kolkata |

(vil)  According to the information and explanations given to us and from the records of the

(ix)

Company examined by us, there were no such transactions which were not recorded in the
books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence comment on paragraph
3(ix) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ot
any other lender.

¢) The has taken term loan during the year and that is utilized for the purpose for which term
loan was taken, hence no adverse remark on the same.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

€) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has no
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence reporting on clause (ix) {e) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has no
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence reporting on clause (ix) (f) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable. -




x)

(xi)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence
comment on clause (x) (a} of Paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or opticnally convertible) during
the year. Hence no comment on clause (x)(b).

a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year, and therefore, the provisions of Clause
{xi)(a) of Paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

¢) According to the information and explanations given by management of the Company we
have not come across any whistle - blower complaints during the year.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Hence comment on clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{a)In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b)We have considered the reports of Internal Auditor for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered in any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with. Accordingly, Clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the order is not
applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the’
records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions

of Clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not conducting any non-banking financial or housing

financial activities. Therefore certificate of registration is not required to be obtained from the
Reserve Bank of India.

{c)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC). Therefore
Clause (xvi) (c) & (d) of paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company.
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{(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has incurred cash losses of 1,10,320.64 (Rs. In Hundreds)
in the financial year and the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, there has been resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and
the outgoing auditor has not raised any issues, objections or concerns which were required to be
considered by the statutory auditor.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note to the financial statements, ageing and
expected ‘dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the company is not liable to undertake activities under corporate social
responsibility as per the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence, comment
on clause (xx)(a) and 3 clause (xx)(b) of Paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable.

(xxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not liable to prepare consolidated financial statements.
Therefore, comment on clause (xxi) of Paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable to the
company.

For P. D, Rungta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001150C

arleced '
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CA Ritesh Kumar Shaw
Place: Kolkata Partner

Date: ) G - Q< - 29 pIRY (Membership No. 305929)
UDIN:2M4205929 € CTRY 4055
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“Annexure - B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Financial Statements of Norben
Tea & Exports Limited

The Annexure referred to in clause (f) of paragraph (2) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date to the Financial Statements of Norben Tea & Exports Limited for
the year ended 31st March 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 315t March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P D Rungta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001150C

AINT UMY

i ' | CA Ritesh Kumar Shaw
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: Q o ~-9C -7 Q pRY (Membership No. 305929)

UDIN: 292089429 RkCTRYQUSS
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB1990PLC0483991
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

Note As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Amount (Rs. in Hundreds) Amount (Rs. in Hundreds)
ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 22,48,550.93 21,85,716.80
(b} Capital Work in Progress 5.1 - -
(<) Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 6 3,107.55 3,107.55
{il) Other Financial Assets B 38,073.19 41,073.19
Deferred tax assets (net)
{d} Non-Current Tax Asset (Net) 9 51,530.68 46,344.82
(e} Deferred tax assets (net) 10 69,854.10 1,62,565.53 69,341.50 1,60,367.06
{2] CURRENT ASSETS ?
{a) Inventories 11 82,111.52 1,21,434.63
{b) Biological Assets other than bearer plants 12 5,478.44 5,478.44
[} Financial Assets
(i) Investments 13 4.25 504.25
(ii) Trade Receivables 6 12,350.43 26,737.64
{iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 24,242.36 18,088.40
(iv} Bank Balance other than (jii) above i5 7,156.11 7,156.11
{v) Loans & Advances 7 1,250.00 1,250.00
{vi} Other Financial Assets 8 38,084.19 83,087.34 42,530.90 96,267.30
{d) Other Current Assets 16 1,414.46 2,002.0%
Total Assets 25,83,208.21 25,71,266.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) EQUITY
{a) Equity Share Capital 17 11,75,000.00 11,75,000.00
{b} Other Equity 18 1,34,945.84 13,09,945.84 3,09,930.35 14,84,930.35
2] LABILITIES
[a] NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 6,63,806.47 6,63,806.47 5,79,627.53 5,79,627.53
{b) Provisions 20 68,228.98 54,552.19
{b} CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 3,79,509.86 3,25,483.72
{ii) Trade Payables 22 40,287.91 34,451.45
{iii) Other Financial Liabilities 23 37,330.34 4,57,128.61 21,767.92 3,81,703.09
(b} Employee's Benefits obligations 24 24,115.10 21,983.72
(c} Other Liabilities 25 59,983.21 48,469.40
Total Equity and Liahilities 25,83,208.21 25,71,266.28
Corporate Information 1
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements &
Presentation 2
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Significant Judgements & Use of Estimates 4
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of
the Financial Statements 5-49
As per our Report annexed of even date For and on hehalf of the Board

For P.D. RUNGTA & CO
Chartered Accountonts

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

RANJAN KUMAR JHALARIA

G
Firm Registration No. 001150C A i ; Chairman & Mg. Director independent Director
& B K I: ([UN: 00123388 (DIN: 2513539?5}
. { T
o Gy
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CA RITESH KUMAR SHAW e NIRAJ TIWARI PAYAL SUROLIA
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. 305929
Place : Kolkata
Date :The 29th day of May, 2024

wIN:2Y20S AL QKCTAYqosS

Membership No. A70479
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CiN No. L01132wWB1990PLC048991
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
Note No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
INCOME Amount (Rs. in Hundreds) Amount (Rs. in Hundreds)
{1) Revenue from Operations 26 6,57,525.23 7,77,560.41
{I1) Other Income 27 3,414.34 2,893.89
{1 Total Income (i + 11} 6,60,939.57 o 7,80,454.30
{1V} EXPENSES
(a) Changes in Inventories ofFinished Goods 28 37,328.43 {11,380.25)
{b) Employee Benefits Expense 29 4,23,493.39 4,23,609.64
{c) Finance Costs 30 1,07,334.15 82,583.27
{d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 31 58,066.74 54,853.55
{e) Other Expenses 32 2,03,104.24 1,97,031.47
Total Expenses (1v) B,29,326.94 7,46,697.68
{V) Profit/(Loss) before Taxes (i -1v) {1,68,387.38) 33,756.62
{V1) Tax Expense: 33
(a) Current Tax - 5,750.00
(b) Mat Credit - 3,400.00
{c) Income Tax For Earlier Year - -
(d) Deferred Tax 1,689.41 3,421.07
(VH} Profit/{Loss) for the year (V - Vi) (1,70,076.79) 21,185.55
(VIH) Other Cumprehensiv_e Income 34
I Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {6,609.73) 3,999.65
ii. Income tax relating to these items 1,702.01 (1,029,971 ]
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax) (V) (4,907.72) 2,969.74
('x) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Il + Vi) {1,74,984,51) 24,155.29
(X} Earnings Per Share
Nominal Value of Shares {Rs.10)
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding
during the year 117,50,000 117,59,000
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (1.45) 0.18
Corporate Infarmation 1
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements & Presentation 2
Significant Accounting Poficies 3
Significant Judgements & Use of Estimates 4
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial
Statements 5-49
As per our Report annexed of even date For and on behalf of the Board
N . o 5
For P.D. RUNGTA & CO N N £ m“'_““'*._
Chartered Accountants MANOJ KUMAR DAGA o RANJAN KUMAR JHALARIA
Firm Registration No. 001150C 5 Chairman & Mg. Director Independent Director
{DIN: 00123386) (DIN: 65353576)
+ ‘ K 7 | }‘ o
L\ ; B = \
ﬁ‘ ‘\& & (NQ\\A i LIk | . £ N 9.9‘&\“) ?‘\.\J\o
CA RITESH KUMAR SHAW {."‘L,,',H,Lxl.r o
Partner NIRAJ TIWARI PAYAL SUROLIA
Membership No. 305929 Company Secretary €hief Financial Officer

Membership No. A7G479
Place : Kolkata
Date :The 29th day of May, 2024
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NORBEN TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB1590PLC048991

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

Amount (Rs. in Hundreds)

For the
Year ended
31st March 2024

For the
Year ended
31st March 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for :
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Assets
Contribution to Gratuity Fund
Mat Credit Entitlement.d
Finance Cost
Other Non-Cash Items
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Investments
Interest Received
Dividend

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable
{Increase)/Decrease In Inventories
{Increase)/Decrease In Other Finacial Assets
{Increase)/Decrease In Other Current Assets
Increase/{Decrease) In Trade Payable
Increase/{Decrease) In Employee Benefit Obligations
Increase/({Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) In Other Financial Liabilities
Increase/{Decrease) In Deferred Tax Liability
Cash generated from operations
Direct Tax (paid) / Refund {Net)

Net Cash from operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP (net of subsidy}
Praceeds from Sale of Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Investments
Purchase of Investments
Profit from Sale of Investments
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Net Cash used in investing activities i (B)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings
Proceeds/Repayment} Long Term borrowing from Bank & Financial Institution
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Unsecured Loans
Interest & Finance Charges
Net Cash used in Financing Activities {C)
Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+(C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Earmark Balances with Bank
Cash & Bank Balances at the end of the year

Note : 1. Figures shown in bracket shows cash outflow.
2. Previous year's Figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

{a)

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
W\ _ k‘_ i b —

MANOI KUMAR DAGA
Chairman & Mg. Director
(DIN: 00123386)

For P.D. RUNGTA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001150C

Citudh Shana .

CA RITESH KUMAR SHAW L [\ .
Partner 4}4-1 ) P
Membership No. 305929 NIRAJ TIWARI
Company Secretary
Place : Kolkata Membership Na. A70479
Date :The 29th day of May, 2024
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{(1,68,387.38) 33,756.62
58,066.74 54,853.55
340.04 (458.86)
7,079.66 {1,825.07)
= 3,400.00
1,07,334.15 82,583.27
- 107.93
{85.19) (301.89)
{2,178.28) {2,072.29)
2,169.64 1,70,043.25
14,387.21 1,441.91
39,323.11 (21,041.78)
7,446.71 (47,860.06)
574.99 4,261.82
5,836.46 (14,170.57)
2,131.38 3,593.36
11,513.81 7,034.01
15,562.92 4,018.15
98,946.22 1,07,320.10
{5,185.86) {6,510.39)
93,760.36 1,00,809.71
(1,23,520.64) (1,52,632.52)
2,279.73 4,311.20
500.00 696.21
- (500.00)
85.19 301.89
2,178.38 2,072.29
{1,18,477.34) {1,45,750.92)
54,026.14 52,044.47
(152.43) 11,174.49
84,331.37 72,000.01
(1,07,334.15) {82,583.27)
30,870.94 52,635.70
6,153.96 7,694.49
18,088.40 10,393.90
24,242.36 18,088.40
7,156.11 7,156.11
31,398.47 25,244.51

For and on behalf of the Board

A Thadasie

RANJAN KUMAR JHALARIA

independent Director

{DIN: 05353976)

Doad o

PAYAL SUROLIA

Chief Financial Officer
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : L01132WB1990PLC048991

OTE

HE FINAN STATEM R THE DE 5T RC

ORATE IN TION

Norben Tea & Exports Limited (“the Company”) is an entity incorporated in India having CIN
No. LO1132WB1990PLCO48991. The registered address of the company is 15B, Hemanta
Basu Sarani, Kolkata — 700 001, Udyam registration number under Ministry of Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises (MSME) is UDYAM-WB-10-0008831.The principal business of the
company-is growing and manufacturing of tea. As per Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the company is not
required to maintain cost records.

Basis aratio inancial St its and tio
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its
functional currency.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis
except the following items:

a) Financial Assets — Current Investments in Shares - Valued at book value instead of
market price.

b) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities ~ Valued at fair value on Balance Sheet approach.

¢) Current investments are carried in the books atpurchase value.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1.

3.2,

Measurement of Fair Values

The company has financial assets: a) Investment in Quoted Shares, b) Loans & Advances,
¢} Trade Receivables — at fair value, Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables at fair value.
Impact of fair value changes, if any as on the date of transition, is recognised in the
opening reserves and changes thereafter are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
during the period.

C w Statement h & Cash Equivalents

Cash Flow Statements are reported using indirect method, where profit before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on available information.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk or changes in value. .
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : L01132WB1990PLC048991

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

Borrowings

Borrowing Cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds .

The borrowings from bank, body corporates have been utilised for the purpose for which
they have been availed i.e. creation of fixed assets/net working capital means. Borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised as the cost of the respective assets. Other borrowing costs are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Prup-gru{, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less allowable
net recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, overheads directly
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation on such tangible assets have been provided on straight line method as per
the useful life estimated by the management. The management estimates the useful lives
of the fixed assets as follows: : '

SERIAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS | | USEFUL LIFE {In Years)
NUMBER )
L Non — Factory Building_s & Bridges i B 60
2. Machinery*, Electric Installations and 30
Factow Buildings
3. Furniture & Fittings*, Laboratory & Other 20
Equipment* &Tubewell
4. Motor Vehicles ) ) - 15
5. _Comg:uter_* ) i 6
6. Office Equipments ) 5
6 | Bearer Plants* 70

*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical
evaluation carried out by external valuers, the management believes that the useful lives
as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets. .
Hence the useful fives for the assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of the schedule of the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold and Leasehold land are not
depreciated,

Impairment of Assers

The carrying amount of the property, plant & equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date. If any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised. An
impairment loss is charged to the Depreciation Schedule and Statement of Profit & Loss
in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired.

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities and Provision for Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities valued on Balance Sheet approach on availability of future
taxable profit against which tax losses and tax benefit carried forward can be used.
Provision for deferred tax recognised on timing differences between the taxable income
and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods enacted as at the reporting date.
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : L01132WB1990PLC048991

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

Inventories
Items of inventories are measured as per "Valuation of Inventories” guidelines issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Institute of Cost Accountants of India.

The details are as follows:

a) Stock of Raw Materials, Stock of Spares & consumables are valued at Cost on FIFO
{First In First Out) basis (excluding the amount of Cenvat/ITC of
Excise/Custom/Service Tax/GST/State Tax Aliowable).

b) Stack of Finished Goods are valued at lower of Cost (excluding the amount of GST/
credit allowable) or net realizable value.

c) There is no deviation in method of valuation of stock as prescribed under section
142A of the income Tax Act, 1961. The financial statements are presented as per
Accounting Standards under IND AS.

gl i s and Financial Liabiliti

Financial Assets and Liabilities are valued at fair market value. The details are as

below:

1. Investments are valued at book value. Unrealised Loss and their deferred tax
assets/liabilities are not provided in the Statement of Profit & Loss as per Ind AS
method of presentation as the management is of the opinion that the unrealised
loss is not permanent in nature and that the investment is strategic in nature.

2. Trade Payables and Trade Receivables are valued at fair market value.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event. it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimates required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or
managerial involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Other Income & Expenditure

a) Investment Income on actual transaction are recognized on actual basis.

b) Interest Income are recognized on accrual basis.

¢) Other Expenses (other than Borrowing Cost and Employee benefit expenses, which
are shown separately) are recognized on accrual basis.
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CiN : L01132WB1990PLC048991

3.11

3.12,

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

Fina Lost
Finance Cost includes interest, amortization and other ancillary cost incurred in regard to

borrowings. All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss for the
period for which they are incurred.

Emplovee Benelit Cos
Short Term Employee Ben

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense ‘during

the perlod when the employees render the services

Long Term Employee Benefits

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution
plans and the charges as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution
required to be made. The Company makes regular contribution to Recognised Provident
Fund which are fully funded and administered by the Central Government.

GST Input Credit;

Goods and Services Tax payment elements on purchase/reverse charge/services
received, whichever applied, covered and allowable as IGST/SGST/CGST credit are
accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service is received and
accounted.

Taxes on Income

There is loss during the year hence no provision of Income Tax made of Income Tax Act,
1961. Provision for deferred tax assets/liabilities is charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss, measured on differences of Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities from one
Balance Sheet date to the next Balance Sheet date.

Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax, by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
Company does not have any instruments for which diluted earnings per share needs to
be calculated.

Segment Reporting

The company has only one primary business segment, i.e. manufacturing of tea.

QOperating Cycle
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time béetween

acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.

4. Use of Estimates and Judgments

in preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the management has
made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and-expenses.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing ba:;ls Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
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NORBEN TEA &
CIN No. LO1232WB1990PLC048991
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Refer
Note No.
6 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade Receivables 6.1&6.2

Total Trade Receivables

Break Up of Security Details
Unsecured, considered good

Total

Total Trade Receivables

EXPORTS LIMITED

Non Current

Current

As at
_31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Amount (Rs. in Hundreds)

Amount (Rs. in Hundreds)

3,107.55 3,107.55 12,350.43 26,737.64
3,107.55 3,107.55 12,350.43 26,737.64
3,107.55 3,107.55 12,350.43 26,737.64
3,107.55 3,107.55 12,350.43 26,737.64
3,107.55 3,107.55 12,350.43 26,737.64

6.1  Trade raceivables are non-interest bearing.
6.2 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member,
6.3  Theageing analysis of the Trade Receivahle
Particulars Outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 (31st March, 2023} from the due date
Less than 6 & months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3Years More than 3 Years
months
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 12,350.43 - - 3,107.55
(26,737.64) {-} (-) {-) (3,107.55)
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables-censidered doubtful - . - -
{-) i) (-} ) ()
[iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered pood . - - . -
(-} (-} -} () ()
{iv} Disputed Trade receivables-considered doubtful - - - = -
| () &) ) () ()
6.4  There are no Unbilled dues which are required to be disclosed separately
7 LOANS & ADVANCES Refer Non Current Current
Note No As at As at As at As at
’ 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Loans & Advances to Qthers 7.1
Unsecured, considered good ) - - 1,250.00 1,250.00
Total Loans & Advances - 1,250.00 1,250.00

7.1

private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

8 OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits

Interest Receivable on Loan and Fixed Deposits

Other Loans and Advances
Unsecured Loan to Body Corporate {considered good)
Advances to others
Advance to Employees
Deferred Revenue Expenditure

g0 |G

MNon Current

No Loans are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are due from firms or

Current

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

1,290.72 1,290.72
- - 19,631.44 19,059.15
- . 15,600.00 20,000.00
10,000.00 10,000.00 452.75 416.75
5,782.47 5,782.47 - 55.00
21,000.00 24,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
38,073.19 41,073.19 38,084.19 42,530.90




10

10.1

11

12

121

13

131

14

Advance Tax & TDS
Less: Provision for Taxation
Mat Credit Entitlement

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Arising on account of :
Property, Plant & Equipmept

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Arising on account of :

Section 43B and other ltems
Brought Forward Unabsorbed Losses

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB1990PLC048991
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2024
NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

101

As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds} (Rs. in Hundreds)

87,428.36 82,242.50
(42,134.68) {42,134.68)
6,237.00 6,237.00
51,530.68 46,344.82
As at As at

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

(Rs. in Hundreds) {Rs. In Hundreds)

1,32,529.71 1,30,840.30
1,32,529.71 1,30,840.30
13,390.84 11,688.83
1,88,992.98 1,88,992.98
2,02,383.82 2,00,681.81
69,854.10 69,841.50

The recognition of deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation/business losses has been restricted to the extent of deferred tax liability on account of
timing difference in respect of depreciation, the reversal of which is virtuaily certian.

INVENTORIES

(As valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods
Stares and Spares etc.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

Refer
Note No.

As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)

50,652.37 87,980.80
31,459.15 33,453.83
82,111.52 1,21,434.63
As at As at

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Fair Value of Biolagical Assets Other than Bearer Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves) 121

Unharvested tea feaves on bushes as on 31st March 2024 was 13527 kgs (31.03.2023 - 13,527 kgs}

CURRENT INVESTMIENTS

INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS

Investments in Quoted Shares
Bansisons Tea industries
Investments in Quoted Mutual Fund
$BI Equity Hybrid Fund

TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Aggregate Book Value of the Quoted Investment
Aggregate Market Value of the Quoted Investment

CASH AND CASH EQUVALENTS

Batances With Banks :
In Current Account
In Other Account
Cash in Hand

(Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)

5,478.44 5,478.44

5,478.44 5,478.44

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

F Val

aceigue Qnty {Rs. in Hundreds) Qrty (Rs. in Hundreds}
10 100 4.25 100 4,25
_ 236 500.00
4.25 504.25
4.25 504.25
3.34 471.95

As at As at

31st March 2024  31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds)  (Rs. in Hundreds)

218.40 216.37
6.50 -

24,017.46 17,872.03

24,242.36 18,088.40
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15.1
16

17

17.1

17.2

173

17.4

175

17.6

12.7

17.8

17.9

17.10

17.11
17.12

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB1990PLC048991
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds)  (Rs. in Hundreds)

BANK BALANCES {OTHER THAN NOTE: 14)
Fixed Deposit with Bank

7,156.11

7,156.11

7,156.11

718611

All the above fixed deposits has been lien to State Bank of India as collateral security against loan repayment on demand and Bank Guarantee.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances other than Capital Advances

As at

As at

31st March 2024  31ist March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds)

{Rs. in Hundreds)

Balance with Govt Autharities - -

Prepaid Expenses 1,368.89 1,956.48

Other Receivables 45.57 45.57
Total Other Assets 1,414.46 2,002.05

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Refer As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Note No. No. of Shares {Rs. in Hundreds) No. of Shares {Rs. in Hundreds}
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Share Capital of Rs 10/-each 120,00,000 12,00,000.00 120,00,000 12,00,000.00
120,00,000 12,00,000.00 120,00,000 12,00,000.00
Issued Share Capital 117,50,000 11,75,000.00 117,50,000 11,75,000.00
Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each 117,50,000 11,75,000.00 117,50,000 11,75,000.00
Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 117,50,000 11,75,000.00 117,50,000 11,75,000.00
Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up 117,550,000 11,75,000.00 117,50,000 11,75,000.00

Reconciliation of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

Opening Number of Shares as on 01/04/2023
Add: Change during the year
Closing as on 31/3/2024

117,50,000

117,500,000

There has baen no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share and each holder of Ordinary shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board-of Directors {except interim dividend) is subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meetings, The claim of Ordinary Shareholders on earnings and on assets in the event of

liauidation, follows all others, in pronortion to their shareholding.
Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ultimate Holding Company.
Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Campany

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding
Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid
Mangalam Products Pvt. Ltd, 12,05,950 10.26 12,05,950 10.26
Tongani Tea Co. Limited 22,60,650 19.24 22,60,650 19.24
Shanti Devi Daga 6,70,056 5.70 6,70,056 5.70

No crdinary shares have been reserved for issuc under optians and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance

Sheet date.

The Company has not allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash ner has allotted any shares as fully paid up by way of bonus
shares nar has bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.
No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year,

Disclosure of shareholdings by Promoters
Shares held by promoters at the end of the viar

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Promoter's Name No. of Shares | % of total shares | % Change during No.of Shares | % of total shares
the year
Manoj Kumar Daga 120501 1.03 120501 1.03
Shanti Devi Daga 670056 5.70 - 670056 5.70
Mano| Kumar Daga {HUF) 45946 0.39 - 45946 0.39
Divisha Daga 587343 5.00 587343 5.00
Jyati Oevi Daga 577300 491 577300 4.91
Paflavi Daga 488416 4.16 488416 4.16
Mangalam Products Pvt.Ltd. 1205950 10.26 1205850 10.26
Tongani Tea Company Lid 2260650 19,24 - 2260650 19.24
Anjum [nvestments Py, Lid, 88597 0.75 88597 0.75

a2
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13.1

18.2

18.3

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

194

19.5

19.6

OTHER EQUITY

General Reserve
Retained Earnings
Other Reserves

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other Reserves

State Capital Investment Subsidy

Balance at the end of the year

Sales Tax Remission Reserve
Balance at the end of the year

Total Other Reserve
Total Raserve & Surplus

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
BORROWINGS

Term Loans
From Bank:
Rupee Leans

(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets acquired)

From Others:
Rupee Loans

{Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets

acquired)
Total

Amount disclosed under the head "Short Term Borrowings"

Unsecured Loan
From Body Corporate - Related Party
From Body Corporate - Other

Unsecured Advances
Advances against property

Break Up of Security Details
Securad
Unsecured

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB1990PLC048991
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)
2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00
{(1,60,080.37) 14,904.14
45,026.21 45,026.21
1,34,945.84 3,09,930.35
As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
{Rs. In Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)
2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00
2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00
As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
{Rs. in Hundreds)} (Rs. in Hundreds)
14,904.14 (9,251.15)
{1,74,984.51) 24,155.29
(1,60,080.37) 14,504.14
As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023

(Rs. in Hundreds)

{Rs. in Hundreds)

34,310.00 34,310.00
10,716.21 10,716.21
45,026.21 45,026.21
1,34,945.84 3,09,930.35
Non Current Current
Refer As at As at As at As at
Note No. 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024  31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds)

(Rs. in Hundreds)

{Rs. in Hundreds)

(Rs. in Hundreds)

32,475.09 32,627.52 8,107.43 6,417.20
32,475.09 32,627.52 8,107.43 6,417.20
- ¢ (8,107.43) {6,417.20)
32,475.09 32,627.52 : -
32,475.09 32,627.52 8,107.43 6,417.20
32,475.09 32,627.52 8,107.43 6,417.20
: - {8,107.43) {6,417.20)
32,475.09 32,627.52 - :
52,200.00 55,000.00 -
5,79,131.38 4,92,000.01 i
6,31,331.38 5,47,000.01 .
32,475.09 32,627.52 8,107.43 6,417.20
6,31,331.38 5,47,000.01 - -
6,63,806.47 5,79,627.53 8,107.43 6,417.20

Rate of Interest and Re-Payment Schedule for term Loan from State Bank of india:
Term Loan has to be availed within a period of 6 month from the date of sanction {Sanclion Amount is Rs. 35 Lacs). Effective interest rate of term loan
taken is 9.95 % p.a. Moratorium period of 6 Menths and then in 84 monthly installments of Rs. 41,657/- each with the first installment commencing on
August 2022 and the last installment falling due on July 2029. Term loan availed as on 31.03.2022 from State Bank of India is Rs. 21,45,303/-

Rate of Interest and Re-Payment Schedule for term Loan from Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Term Loan amounting te Rs. 8,20,000/- has been availed to purchase vehicle . Effective interest rate of term loan taken is 9.80 % p.a. Term Loan is
Repayable in 60 monthly installments of Rs. 17,330/- each with the first installment commencing on July 2022 and the last installment falling due on

August 2027.

Term Loan amounting to Rs. 8,90,000/- has been availed to purchase vehicle . Effective interest rate of term loan taken is 12.08 % p.a. Term Loan is

Repayable in 59 monthly installments of Rs. 19,900/~ each with the first Insta

April 2028.

lmment commencing on June 2023 and the last installment falling due on



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. LO1132WB1990PLCO48991
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

20  PROVISIONS Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Hundreds) {Rs. in Hundreds}  (Rs. in Hundreds} (Rs. in Hundreds)
Provisicn for Employee Benefits 68,228.98 54,552.19 . -
Total 68,228.98 54,552,19 =
21 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS As at As at
315t March 2024 31st March 2023
_[Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundrecs)
Term Loans
- Vehicle Loan from Financial Institution 3,107.39 1,417.16
- Term Loan from Stale Bank of India 5,000.04 5,000.04
Loans Repayable on Demand
- Working Capital Loan from Banks 3,25,164.19 2,72,494.86
- Stand By Line of Credit 36,333.81 36,363.71
~Working Capital Loan from Banks (Garden) 9,904.43 10,207.95
" 3,79,509.86 3,25,483.72
21.1 The above amount includes
Secured Borrowings 3,79.509.86 3,25,483.72
3,79,509.86 3,25,481.72
21.2 Terms and conditions of Current Borrowings
The Current Borrowings from State Bank of India are secured primarily by way of hypothecation of stocks of tea crops, green leaves, stores & spares, book debts, other current
assets, plant & machinery and other fixed assets, equitable morigage of all piece and parcel of land measuring approx 126 acres land and building there on under Berubari
G P.Situated at Dist Jaloaiwuri and further secured bv oersonal suarantes of Promoter Director i e Sri Manoi Kumar Daea
21.3  The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by Director Is Rs. 3,79,505,86 (Previous Year Rs.3,25,483.72)
21.4  The present applicable rate of interest per annum for Cash Credit loan from State Bank of india is 9.95 % .
21.5 The present applicable rate of interest per annum for Stand by line of Credit loan from State Bank of India 15 10.95 % ,
Refer Non Current Current
22 TRADE PAYABLES Note Na. As at Asat As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023 31st March 2024  31st March 2023
(Rs. in Hundreds)  [Rs.in Hundreds)  (Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)
Dues to Micre and Small Enlerpriscs - ~ -
Dues to Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises
For Goeds & Services - 40,287.91 34,451.45
40,287.91 34,451.45
22,1 Disclosure as required under the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per notification number GSR 679 (E] dated 4th
September, 2015, The Company has compiled Lhis information based on intimation recewved from the suppliers of their status as Micro or Small Enterprises and/or its registration
with apfitopsisds autharty under the Micro, small and Medium Entergrises Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act™),
Sl. No. As at As at
‘Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs Dovelopment Act,
2006, along wilh the amount of the payment made lo the MNIL NIL
supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting
1] The amount of Interest due and payable for Lhe period of delay
in making payment bul without adding the interest specifiad NIL NIL
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Art TR
[} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the NIL NIL
end of each acgounting vear
iv The amount of further inlerest remaining due and payuble even
in the succeeding years, until such date when Lhe interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, lor the purpose NIL NIL
al disallowance of a deductible expendilure under scclion 23 of
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act,
TaTLN
22.2 The agelng analysis of the Trade Payable
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2024 {as
Particulars on 31.03.2023)
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
{i) MSME - . - =
{ii) Others 25,099.75 1,010.82 337.21 13,840.12 40,287.90
{19,981.93) {1,655.00) (9,501.06) (3,313.46) {34,451.45)
{ill] Disputed dues-MSME - - - E . -
{Iv) Cisputed dues -Others « | - - | +
__ MNon Current Current
23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at As at Asat As at
31st March 2024 3ist March 2023 st March 2024 315t March 2023
{Rs. in Hundreds) {Rs. in Hundreds) {Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)
Interest Accrued on Borrowings 30,794.88 16,566.49
Other Payables - 6,535.96 5,201.43
- 37,330.84 21,767.92
23.1  There ace no amounts due for payment Lo Lhe Inveslar Education and Proteclion Furid at the year end
24  EMPLOYEES BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS As at As at
st March 2024 3Ist March 2023
{Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Humadredds)
Salaries & Wages Payable 24,115.10 21,983.72
24,115.10 21,983.72
Non Current Current
25  OTHER LIABILITIES As at As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
[Rs.in Hundreds]  [Rs. in Hundreds)  {Rs. in Hundreds) {(Rs. in Hundreds)
Stalutory Dues EEJ . - 59,442.26 48,363.00
Others 3 - . 540.95 166.40
Y - 59,983.21 48,469.40




NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. LO1132WE1990PLC048991
Notes to Financial Statements as oa and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

26  REVENUE FROM QPERATIONS For the year For the year
ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023

Sale of Products

(Rs. in Hundreds)

{Rs. in Hundreds)

Tea 5,64,944.43 6,91,330.78
Sale of Cuttings 56,628.00 33,705.00
Other Operating Revenue
Scrap Sale . 190.00
Commission Income 35,952.79 52,334.63
6,57,525.23 7,77,560.41
27  OTHER INCOME For the year For the year
ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
(Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)
Imterest Income
On Loans 1,609.59 1,542.47
On Bank Deposit 568.79 529.82
Other Income 1,150.77 60.85
Profit on sale of investrments (net) 85.19 301.89
Profit on sale of fixed Assets (net) 458.86
3,414.34 2,893.89
28  {INCREASE)/ DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF For the year For the year
FINISHED GOODS ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
Finished Goods (Rs. in Hundreds) (Rs. in Hundreds)
Opening Inventories 87,980.80 76,600.55
Closing Inventories 50,652.37 87,580.80
Total changes in inventories of finished goods 37,328.43 (11,380.25)
29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE rorne year rorne year
ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
{Rs. in Hundreds} (Rs. in Hundreds)
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 3,48,427.01 3,48,956.10
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 34,388.70 33,853.91
Staff Welfare Expenses 33,084.57 32,047.58
Gratuity 7,593.11 8,752.05
4,23,493.39 #4,23,609.64
30 FINANCE COST For the year For the year
ended ended

Interest Expenses

31st March 2024
(Rs. in Hundreds)

31st March 2023
(Rs. in Hundreds})

To Banks an Term Loans 8,490.07 2,952.21

To Banks On Working Capital Loans 29,867.86 30,317.02

To Interest on Unsecured Loan 64,982.22 52,873.04

To Interest on Other Loans 2,097.07 2,009.27
Other Borrowing Costs

QOther Financial Charges 1,896.93 1,451.21

1,07,334.15 89,602.75

Less:  Amount Capitalised - 7,019.48

1,07,334.15 82,583.27

35
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

31  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Amortization on Bearer Plants

32 OTHER EXPENSES

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials
Consumed

Power & Fuel

Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Machinery
Repairs to Other Assets
Manufacturing Expenses

Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges &
Expenses

Commission & Brokerages

Auditors' Remuneration

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Rent, Rates & Taxes

[nsurance

Directors' Fees & Commissicn

Legal and Professional Charges
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Other Expenses

v

Selling

32.1 Auditors’ Remuneration

Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Other Fees

33  TAX EXPENSES
Current Tax
MAT Tax
Deferred Tax
34  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

34.1 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the defined benelit plans
Less: Tax expense on the above

Total

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
{Rs. in Hundreds} (Rs. in Hundreds}
42,595.82 40,982.26
15,470.92 13,871.29
58,066.74 54,853.55

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
(Rs. in Hundreds) (As. in Hundreds)
21,341.43 17,353.35
98,243.80 96,977.21
1,243.52 761.67
6,192.80 4,173.35
298.15 797.80
32,265.18 32,849.15
6,637.69 6,528.12
6,325.02 8,293.36
1,500.00 1,165.00

340.04 -
13,534.56 12,353.80
833.34 711.24
1,135.00 1,090.00
3,570.04 4,827.00
639.23 713.80
8,954.45 8,436.60
2,03,104.24 1,97,031.47
For the year For the year
ended ended

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds)

(Rs. in Hundreds)

1,500.00 750.00
- 150.00
- 265.00
1,500.00 1,165.00
For the year. For the year
ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023

(Rs. In Hundreds)

{Rs. In Hundreds)

- 5,750.00
- 3,400.00
1,689.41 3,421.07
1,689.41 12,571.07
For the year For the year
ended ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023

{Rs. in Hundreds)

[Rs. in Hundreds)

(6,609.73) 3,959.65
1,702.01 (1,029.91)
(4,907.72) 2,969.74
{4,907.72) 2,969.74
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 2024

35. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
a) Income tax liability not provided for:

Nameofthe | Nature of dues ~ Amount (in Rs.) Amount p;id Period to which Forum where |
statute under the amount dispute is
dispute relates(Financial pending
(Rupees in Year)
. ) Hundreds)
| Income Tax Income Tax 24,650.00 = 1995-1996 DCIT, Kolkata
| Income Tax Income Tax 8,456.70 1,693.44 2010-2011 CIT(A), Kolkata
Income Tax Income Tax  62,557.70 9,393.66 2012-2013 CIT(A}, Kolkata
’ _ _ L 5
Income Tax Income Tax 5,809.70 1,181.50 2013-2014 CIT(A}, Kolkata |
Income Tax Income Tax 'I 11,714.64 1,210.00 2016-2017 CIT(A), Kolkata !
| | -

Above mentioned liabilities are Disputed Income Tax liabilities which are pending with Income tax
department hence not provided for.

b) Estimated amount of expenditure remaining to be executed on capital account {net of amount already
expended) Rs. Nil {previous year Rs. NIL).

36. Clatm against the company not acknowledged as debt:
The W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess of Rs.278000/- was not acknowledged by the company as debt and had been written
back to the accounts in the year 2013-14. The management is confident that no liability would arise on W.B.R.E.
& P.E. Cess.
37, Balance of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation. In view of the
management these amounts are receivable/payable in the ordinary course of business.
38. In terms of the Ind AS 108, issued by the ICAl, neither a business segment ner a geographical segment has been
identified as reportable segment during the year.
39, Total value of stores & spare parts and packing material consumed: Indigenous — 100% - Rs.21,341.43 (Previous
year — Indigenous — 100% - Rs. 17,353.35}.
40. Income and Expenditure in Foreign Currency — Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nif).
41, Additional Regulatory Informations:

i) Title Deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company

Title Deeds of Immovable Property are held in the name of the Company therefore the disclosure requirement
w.r.t the Title Deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company are not applicable to the
company in terms of Para 6(L)(i) of Part | of Schedule-lll of the Act.

i) The Fair Valuation of Investment Property is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer
The Company does not hold any Investment property and therefore the disclosure requirement w.r.t the Fair

Value is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer is not applicable to the company in terms of Para 6(L)(ii)
of Part I of Schedule-111 of the Act :




iii) The Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) is based on the
valuation by a Registered Valuer

The Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) has not been done and
therefore the disclosure requirement w.r.t the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer is
not applicable to the company in terms of Para 6(L)(iii) of Part | of Schedule-III of the Act

iv) The Revaluation of Intangible Assets is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer

The Company does not hold any Intangible Assets and therefore the disclosure requirement w.r.t the
Revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer is not applicable to the company in terms of Para
6(L)(iv) of Part | of Schedule-lIl of the Act

v) Loans or Advances granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parteis

The Company has not granted loan to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the
Companies Act 2013) during the year under audit and therefore the disclosure requirement w.r.t Loans or
Advances granted,to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related partes in terms of Para 6(L)(v) of Part | of
Schedule-Ill of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress

There is no Capital Work-in-Progress(C-WIP) during the current financial year and therefore the disclosure
requirement w.r.t Capital Work-In-Progress are not applicable to the company in terms of Para 6(L)(iv) of Part |
of Schedule-lll of the Act

vii) Intangible Asset Under Development
There is no Intangible Asset Under Development during the current financial year and therefore the disclosure
requirement w.r.t Intangible Asset Under Development are not applicable to the company in terms of Para

6(L)(vii) of Part | of Schedule-Ill of the Act

viii) Details of Benami Property held:

Neither any proceedings have been initiated nor any proceedings are pending against the Company for holding
any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the Rules made thereunder.
In view of this, the disclosure requirement in terms of Para 6(L)(viii) of Part | of Schedule-lll of the Act are not

applicable to the Company.
ix) Quarterly Returns or Statements of Current Assets and reconciliation thereof

The Company has not borrowed any money either from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets only, hence, stock statement is not mandatory to file and therefore disclosure requirement as to
Quarterly Returns or statements of current assets and reconciliation thereof in terms of Para 6(L)(ix)(a) of Part

1 of Schedule-IIl of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

x) Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institutions or other lender and

therefore, the disclosure requirement w.r.t Wilful Defaulter in terms of Para 6(L)(x) of Part | of Schedule-IiI of the
Act are not applicable to the company '

xi) Relationship with Struck Off Companies
The Company has not entered into transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies

Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 and therefore disclosure requirement w.r.t Relationship with
Struck Off Companies in terms of Para 6(L)(xi) of Part | of Schedule-lil of the Act is not applicable to the Company

xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

No charges or satisfaction which remains unregistered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

xiii) Compliance with Number of Layers of Companies
No investment has been made in any company, thus the disclosure requirement w.r.t Compliance with number

of layers of Companies in terms of Para 6(L)(xiii) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.
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xiv) Financial Ratio Analysis:

During the year under Audit, no Scheme of Arrangements have been approved the Competent Authority in
terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, the disclosure requirement w.r.t
Compliance with Approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements in terms of Para 6{L}{xv) of Part | of Schedule-(Il of the

Act is not applicable to the Company.

xvi)

A. During the year under Audit, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
Foreign Entites (Intermediate) and therefore, disclosure requirement as to Utilization of Borrowed Funds and
Share Premium in terms of Para 6(L)(xvi){A) of Part | of Schedule-1l! of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

Utilization of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

Current | Previous
Ratios Numerator Denominator | Reporting | reporting | o; of Reason
Period period Change
Current ratio | Total Current Asset Tot-al (.Ifjr.rent 0.32 0.50 -36.00 Increase_ln .
Liabilities current liablities
i ' . hareholder’ i
Debt Equity Debt Capital shareholder’s | oo55 | 6005 | 30.68 | IMereasein
Ratio Equity Borrowings
Debt Service Debt Service
. EBITDA-CAPEX {Int+Principal) -0.0034 0.3382 -101.01 Due to Loss
coverage ratio
Return an Average
] . Profit for the year | Shareholder’s | -0.1217 0.0244 -598.77 | Due to Loss
Equity Ratio :
Equity
I
nventory . Net Turnover Average 6.46 7.01 -7.85 NA
Turnover Ratio Inventory
Trade Average trade
Receivables Net Turnover g 29.03 25.44 14.11 NA
. receivables
turnover ratio
Total Purchases
(Fuel Cost + Other .
cl
Trade payables | o oo+ Closing | ClOSinBTrade |, g 5.25 16,57 | NA
turnover ratio , Payables
Inventory -Opening
Inventory)
Net capital Working Increase in
I . -1.78 -3.43 -48.10 i
turnover ratio e capital (CA-CL) Liabilities
Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales -0.2587 0.0272 -1051.10 | Due to Loss
Return on
. al
Capital Earnings before | Capita 00299 | 00549 | -154.46 | Due to Loss
interest and tax Employed
employed
Due to decrease
i le of A . .
.Return on Pragion sale & g 17.04 66.43 -74.35 in profit on sale
investment Investment Invested Fund )
of investments
xv) Compliance with Approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements




42.

B. During the year under Audit, the Company has not received funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
Foreign Entities {(Funding Party) and therefore, disclosure requirement as to Utilization of Borrowed Funds and
Share Premium in terms of Para 6(L)(xvi){B) of Part | of Schedule-1ll of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvii} The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
Hence, reporting in terms of Para 7(1) of Part il of Schedule-lIt - Division Il of the Act is not applicable to
the Company.

xviii) The Company is not covered under section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 and hence Corporate Social
Responsibility Activities are not required to be done by the company

— —— — - |

! _Pe_lrt[culars _ - | Amount

|- Gross Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year N.A
Related Party transactions as per ind AS 24 in relation to CSR Expenditure NA
Provision made in refation 1o CSR expenditure NA

xix) The company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year. Hence, reporting in terms of Para 7{n} of Part il of Schedule-lll of the Act is not applicable to the

Company.

The company has sufficient liquidity for continuing its business operations. The company is also confident about
its ability to service its debt and other financial liabilities.

i

i
o

L e

90



43, Related Party Transactions -Names of related parties and description of relationship:-

Relationship Name
Name of the Company in which Directors/ Key Tongani Tea Company Limited
Managerial Personnel and their relatives have Mangalam Products Private Limited
significant influence Anjum Investments Private Limited

Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga - Managing Director
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria — Director
Mrs. Swati Agarwal — Director

mr. Balkishan Agarwal — Director

Mrs. Tanushree Chatterjee — Director
Mr. Dipak Tiwari - Director

Mrs. Payal Surolia, CFO

{Appointed on 29" May, 2023)

Mr. Ashish Pathak - Company Secretary
{Resigned on 18" September, 2023)
Mr. Niraj Tiwari — Company Secretary
{(Appointed on 9" November, 2023

| Key Managerial Personnel

individuals having significant influence over Nil
reporting entity

Particulars of transactions and closing balances during the year: {Rs. in hunderds}

44,

Nature of transactions Enterprises over which Key Key Managerial Balance as on 31"
Managerial Personnel have Personnel March, 2024
significant influence
' Remuneration - 14,743.94 2,097.50
(--) (16,264.40) (1,904.00)
Sitting Fees = 1,135.00 2
(=) (1090.00) (=)
Unsecured Loan Taken © 17,200.00 = 72,200.00
{Net of repayment)
(20,000.00) ) = (55,000.00)
Interest Paid ~10,095.66 9,086.08
(5,706.99) = (5,136.29)
Sale of Plant 14,850.00 - -
{Agriculture Sale) ) -
~ {16,875.00) - ()

The figures in bracket represent corresponding amount of the previous year.

Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND AS

and the requirements laid down in the Schedule-Ill of the Companies Act, 2013.
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